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Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20549

U.S.A.
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Ladies and Gentlemen, / 3\3“ 2@

THOMSON
Re:  Shandong International Power Development Company Lm&%he
“Company”) — Information Furnished Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (File Ref.: 82-4932)

BY HAND

This letter and the enclosed materials are furnished to the Commission pursuant to the
referenced exemption from the registration requirements of Section 12(g) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), available to foreign private
issuers pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder.

The purpose of this letter is to furnish to the Commission the documents relating to the
Company which were made public since our letter dated May 20, 2003, copies of which are
enclosed with this letter (indexed in Annex 1).

If you have any questions with regard to this letter, please contact the undersigned in the
Hong Kong office of Baker & McKenzie by telephone at 011-852-2846-2429 or by facsimile
at 011-852-2842-0516.

On behalf of the Company, thank you for your attention to this matter.
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Annex 1

A List of Documents Made Public
in connection with the Listing since last submission of May 20, 2003

1. Circular dated May 30, 2003 in relation to:

1) proposed application to issue A Shares to the PRC public and to China
Huadian;

(i)  proposed amendments to the Articles of Association;
(iii)  proposed acquisition of equity interest in Guangan from China Huadian; and

(iv)  discloseable transaction and connected transactions.



THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker
or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Shandong International Power Development Company Limited, you
should at once hand this circular and the reply slip for attendance and proxy form to the purchaser or the transferee or to the
bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or the
transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

SIPD 12g3-2 (b)
File No. 82-4932

WREBEBRSEFAZRMGAERQ T
SHANDONG INTERNATIONAL
POWER DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(A Sino-foreign investment joint stock company limited by shares incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)

Proposed application to issue A Shares to the PRC public and to China Huadian
Proposed amendments to the Articles of Association
Proposed acquisition of equity interest in Guangan from China Huadian
Discloseable transaction and connected transactions

Financial adviser to Shandong International Power Development Company Limited
in respect of its proposed acquisition of equity interest in Guangan from China Huadian

CHINA INTERNATIONAL CAPITAL
CORPORATION (HONG KONG) LIMITED
cicc

Independent financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee of
Shandong International Power Development Company Limited
CLSA EQUITY CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

2 CLSA

EMERGING MARKETS

IT IS IMPORTANT TO NOTE THAT THE PURPOSE OF DISTRIBUTING THIS CIRCULAR IS TO PROVIDE THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY WITH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE
PROPOSED ISSUE OF A SHARES BY THE COMPANY, SO THAT THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY MAY
MAKE AN INFORMED DECISION ON VOTING IN RESPECT OF CERTAIN RESOLUTIONS TO BE TABLED AT
THE 2002 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY. THE A SHARES WILL BE ISSUED ONLY TO
SUBSCRIBERS IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, THIS CIRCULAR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER
OF, OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY, ANY OF THE A SHARES, NOR IS THIS CIRCULAR
CALCULATED TO INVITE OFFERS FOR ANY SHARES OR OTHER SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY.

A letter from the board of directors of the Company is set out on pages 1 to 24 of this circular. A letter from the Independent
Board Committee is set out on pages 25 to 26 of this circular. A letter from CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited, the
independent financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee, is set out on pages 27 to 38 of this circular.

A notice dated 9th May, 2003 convening the 2002 annual general meeting of the Company to be held at Guihe Crown
Holiday Inn, No.3 Tianditan Street, Jinan, Shandong, the People’s Republic of China at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 24th June,
2003, together with the reply slip for attendance, proxy form and a copy of the announcement dated 9th May, 2003 issued by
the Company and published in newspapers on 10th May, 2003 and 12th May, 2003, was despatched to the shareholders of the
Company on 10th May, 2003. If you are eligible, and intend, to attend the Company’s 2002 annual general meeting, please
complete and return the reply slip for attendance enclosed with the Company’s notice of annual general meeting in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible and in any event by Tuesday, 3rd June, 2003. Whether or
not you will attend the Company’s annual general meeting, you are requested to complete and return the proxy form enclosed
with the Company’s notice of annual general meeting in accordance with the instructions printed thereon. Completion and
return of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the annual general meeting or any
adjournment thereof should you so wish.

30th May, 2003
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the

following meanings:

“A Share(s)”

“AGM”

“Articles of Association” or
“Articles”

“associate(s)”

“China Huadian™

6GCLSA9’

13

“Company

“CSRC”
“Directors”

“Gr0up99

means the domestic ordinary share(s) of the Company with a
nominal value of RMB1.00 each, proposed to be issued by
the Company to individuals and institutional investors in the
PRC (i.e., the PRC public) and to China Huadian under the
Proposed A Share Issue;

means the 2002 annual general meeting of the Company
proposed to be held at Guihe Crown Holiday Inn, No.3
Tianditan Street, Jinan, Shandong, the PRC at 10:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, 24th June, 2003;

means the Articles of Association of the Company;
has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules;

means B % ¥ £ B 2 §) (China Huadian Corporation), a
wholly State-owned enterprise and is now the controlling
shareholder of the Company holding approximately 53.56%
of its entire issued share capital;

CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited, the independent
financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee and is
a licensed securities adviser and corporate finance adviser
under the SFO;

means [URBBEERREZRMHAR 2 A (Shandong
International Power Development Company Limited), a Sino-
foreign investment joint stock company limited by shares
incorporated in the PRC, which is principally engaged in the
electricity-generating business and whose H Shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange;

means China Securities Regulatory Commission;
means the directors of the Company;

means the Company, its subsidiaries, and all power plants and
power stations under its control;

—_11 —




DEFINITIONS

“Guangan”

“Guangan Acquisition Agreement”

“Guide”

“H Share(s)”

“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

“Independent Board Committee”

“Independent Directors’
Guiding Opinions”

“Independent Shareholders”

“Latest Practicable Date”

means W/I| ELZ#EEHMREFE S (Sichuan Guangan
Power Generation Company Limited), a company
incorporated in the PRC which is owned as to 80% by China
Huadian and as to the remaining 20% by a third party
independent of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of their
chief executives, directors or substantial shareholders or any
associates of any of them;

means the agreement dated 9th May, 2003 entered into
between the Company and China Huadian in connection with
the proposed acquisition by the Company from China
Huadian of its 80% equity interest in Guangan;

means the Guide for Articles of Association of Listed
Companies promulgated by the CSRC on 16th December,
1997,

means the overseas listed foreign shares of the Company with
a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which H Shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange;

means Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong;

means Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of The
People’s Republic of China;

means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

means a committee of the board of Directors comprising the
two independent non-executive Directors (namely, Mr. Ding
Changhao and Mr. Kung Shaindow) established for the
purpose of considering the proposed issue of A Shares by the
Company to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share
Issue, the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions
contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement;

means the Guiding Opinions Concerning the Establishment of
the System of Independent Directors for Listed Companies
promulgated by the CSRC on 16th August, 2001;

means shareholders of the Company, other than China
Huadian and its associates;

means 28th May, 2003, being the latest practicable date for

ascertaining certain information referred to in this circular
prior to the printing of this circular;

— il —



DEFINITIONS

“Listing Rules”

“Ningxia Yinglite”

“PRC”

e

“Proposed A Share Issue’

“Proposed Acquisition”

“Regulatory Opinions”

‘(RMB bk

‘SSFO”

“Shanghai Stock Exchange”

“Standards”

“%’7

means the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

means Ningxia Yinglite Zhongning Power Company Limited,
a company incorporated in the PRC which is principally
engaged in the power-generating business and whose
registered capital is, as at the date hereof, owned as to 20%
by the Company and as to 80% by third parties independent
of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of their chief
executives, directors or substantial shareholders or any
associates of any of them;

means The People’s Republic of China;

means the proposed issue of a maximum of 765,000,000 new
A Shares, of which a maximum of 196,000,000 new A Shares
(in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) are
proposed to be allocated and issued to China Huadian, with
the remaining portion to be issued to individuals and
institutional investors in the PRC (i.e., the PRC public), and
the proposed listing of such new A Shares to be issued to the
PRC public as mentioned above on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange;

means the proposed acquisition by the Company from China
Huadian of its 80% equity interest in Guangan pursuant to the
Guangan Acquisition Agreement;

means the Regulatory Opinions on Standardizing
Shareholders’ General Meetings of Listed Companies
promulgated by the CSRC on 18th May, 2000;

means Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

means the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

means Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC;

means the Standards for the Governance of Listed Companies
jointly promulgated by the CSRC and the State Economic and
Trade Commission of the PRC on 7th January, 2002; and

per cent.

For the purpose of this circular, where amounts in HK$ have been derived from RMB, such
translations are for the convenience of the reader only, and except as otherwise indicated, have
been made at the rate of RMB1.06 to HK$1.00. No representation is made that RMB amounts
could have been or could be converted into HK$ at this rate or any other rate or at all.

— v —



LETTER FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

WREBERSRERRAZIKMHDBRLQF

SHANDONG

INTERNATIONAL

POWER DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(A Sino-foreign investment joint stock company limited by shares incorporated in the People's Republic of China)

Executive Directors:
HE Gong

DA Hongxing
ZHU Chongli
CHEN Jianhua
TIAN Peiting
PENG Xingyu
ZHANG Bingju
WANG Yingli
LIN Mingshan
WANG Guisheng

Independent non-executive Directors:

DING Changhao
KUNG Shaindow

To the shareholders of the Company

Dear Sir or Madam,

Legal address and head office:
14 Jingsan Road

Jinan, Shangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Principal place of business
in Hong Kong:

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

Hong Kong share registrar and
transfer office:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

30th May, 2003

PROPOSED APPLICATION TO ISSUE A SHARES

TO THE PRC PUBLIC AND TO CHINA HUADIAN
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF EQUITY INTEREST IN GUANGAN

FROM CHINA HUADIAN

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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INTRODUCTION
Proposed A Share Issue

Reference was made to the announcement dated 9th May, 2003 issued by the Company and
published in newspapers on 10th May, 2003 and 12th May, 2003, in which it was announced
that on 9th May, 2003, the board of Directors resolved that the Company shall apply: (a) to
the CSRC for the issue of a maximum of 765,000,000 new A Shares, of which a maximum of
196,000,000 new A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) are
proposed to be allocated and issued to China Huadian to demonstrate the Company’s
appreciation to China Huadian for its support in favour of the Company’s developments, with
the remaining portion of the new A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share Issue
(which are proposed to be listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) to be issued to individuals
and institutional investors in the PRC (i.e., the PRC public); and (b) to the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for the listing of such A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share Issue to the
PRC public as mentioned above on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. China Huadian has
confirmed that it will fully subscribe, at the same price as the issue price under the Proposed
A Share Issue, for all A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) to be
allocated to it under the Proposed A Share Issue.

The Proposed A Share Issue, and the structure thereof as particularised herein, is subject to be
approved by the Company’s shareholders at the AGM. As China Huadian is the controlling
shareholder of the Company holding approximately 53.56% of its entire issued share capital,
the proposed issue of any of the A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person
shares) under the Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian, if materialised, will constitute a
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules, and is subject to be approved
by the Independent Shareholders at the AGM with China Huadian abstaining from voting.
The Independent Board Committee has been established to consider, among other things, the
proposed issue of A Shares by the Company to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share
Issue and to advise the Independent Shareholders in respect of the same. CLSA has been
appointed as the independent financial adviser to advise the Independent Board Committee.

Proposed amendments to the Articles of Association

Amendments will be proposed to be made to the Articles of Association to cater for, and
following completion of, the Proposed A Share Issue. Further to the announcement dated
16th April, 2003 issued by the Company relating to the proposed change of the Company’s
name from “|L 3R B % B /R 7 % 32 19 B IR 22 7] Shandong International Power Development
Company Limited” to “EEBERE AR {7 B R 2 & Huadian Power International
Corporation Limited”, on 9th May, 2003, the Directors also announced certain details
regarding the proposed amendment to the Articles of Association to cater for the proposed
change of the Company’s name.
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Proposed Acquisition

On 9th May, 2003, the Directors further announced that on that day, the Company entered into
the Guangan Acquisition Agreement with China Huadian for the acquisition from China
Huadian of its 80% equity interest in Guangan for a consideration of RMB475.50 million
(approximately HK$448.58 million, subject to adjustment) which (or part thereof) is currently
expected to be funded out of the proceeds of the Proposed A Share Issue.

Guangan is a company established in the PRC which is currently owned as to 80% by China
Huadian and as to the remaining 20% by a third party (which has consented to the Proposed
Acquisition) independent of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of their chief executives,
directors or substantial shareholders or any associates of any of them. Following completion
of the Proposed Acquisition, Guangan is expected to become a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company which will be interested as to 80% of Guangan’s equity interest.

The Proposed Acquisition strategically signifies the expansion of the Company’s business
outside of Shandong Province into other provinces in China, and reflects the support that
China Huadian has, since its becoming the Company’s controlling shareholder in early April,
2003, been demonstrating in favour of the Company’s developments.

The Proposed Acquisition constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under Rule
14.12(1) of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as China Huadian is the controlling shareholder
of the Company, the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the
Guangan Acquisition Agreement constitute connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules and are subject to the approval of the Independent Shareholders being obtained
at the AGM with China Huadian abstaining from voting.

The Company has appointed China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited as
its financial adviser in respect of the Proposed Acquisition. The Independent Board
Committee has also been established to consider, among other things, the Proposed
Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and
to advise the Independent Shareholders in respect of the same. CLSA has been appointed as
the independent financial adviser to advise the Independent Board Committee.

AGM

On 9th May, 2003, the board of Directors resolved to convene the AGM to be held on
Tuesday, 24th June, 2003 to approve, among other things including the Company’s financial
statements for the financial year ended 31st December, 2002, the Proposed A Share Issue and
the structure thereof, the amendments proposed to be made to the Articles of Association and
the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement. A notice dated 9th May, 2003 convening the AGM, together with the reply slip
for attendance, proxy form and a copy of the Company’s announcement dated 9th May, 2003,
was despatched to the shareholders of the Company on 10th May, 2003.
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The purpose of this circular is to provide the shareholders of the Company with further
information in relation to the Proposed A Share Issue, amendments proposed to be made
to the Articles of Association, the Proposed Acquisition, details of the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement and all transactions contemplated thereunder, so as to enable the
Company’s shareholders to vote on the resolutions set out in the Company’s notice of the
AGM issued on 9th May, 2003. The recommendations of the Independent Board
Committee to the Independent Shareholders are set out on pages 25 to 26 of this circular.
A copy of the letter from CLSA containing its advice to the Independent Board
Committee is set out on pages 27 to 38 of this circular.

PROPOSED APPLICATION TO ISSUE A SHARES
TO THE PRC PUBLIC AND TO CHINA HUADIAN

On 9th May, 2003, the board of Directors resolved that the Company shall apply: (a) to the
CSRC for the issue of a maximum of 765,000,000 new A Shares, of which a maximum of
196,000,000 new A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) are
proposed to be allocated and issued to China Huadian to demonstrate the Company’s
appreciation to China Huadian for its support in favour of the Company’s developments, with
the remaining portion of the new A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share Issue
(which are proposed to be listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) to be issued to individuals
and institutional investors in the PRC (i.e., the PRC public); and (b) to the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for the listing of such A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share Issue to the
PRC public as mentioned above on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In connection with the proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian under the Proposed A
Share Issue, China Huadian issued a written commitment on 7th May, 2003 in favour of the
Company and a confirmation letter on 8th May, 2003 that China Huadian will fully subscribe,
at the same price as the issue price under the Proposed A Share Issue, for all A Shares (in the
form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) to be allocated to it under the Proposed A
Share Issue, and has in effect irrevocably agreed not to dispose of or otherwise deal with such
A Shares until such time when the PRC government releases any new policy regulating the
exchange trading of State-owned shares and legal person shares. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, they are not aware as to whether and, if so, when any such new policy may be
released. Following completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, China Huadian will continue
to be the controlling shareholder of the Company. As stated above, such A Shares are, under
the Proposed A Share Issue, proposed to be issued to China Huadian to demonstrate the
Company’s appreciation to China Huadian for its support in favour of the Company’s
developments. The Directors believe that maintaining a close relationship with China
Huadian is instrumental in enhancing the future continuing success of the Company.
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2.1 Structure of the Proposed A Share Issue

The structure of the Proposed A Share Issue is set out below:

(1) Type of securities
to be issued:

(2) Number of A Shares
to be issued and
target subscribers:

(3) Nominal value:

RMB denominated ordinary shares

A maximum of 765,000,000 new A Shares,
representing approximately (and in any event not more
than) 20% of all domestic shares of the Company
currently in issue. Out of such 765,000,000 new A
Shares: .

(a) a maximum of 196,000,000 new A Shares (in the
form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares)
are proposed to be allocated and issued to China
Huadian; and

(b) the remaining portion of the new A Shares to be
issued under the Proposed A Share Issue is
proposed to be issued to individuals and
institutional investors, except those prohibited by
PRC laws and/or regulations, in the PRC (i.e., to
the PRC public), and such A Shares are proposed
to be listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In the event that the total number of A Shares to be
issued under the Proposed A Share Issue turns out to be
less than the maximum number of 765,000,000 A
Shares as is currently contemplated, the number of A
Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal
person shares) to be allocated and issued to China
Huadian will, as currently contemplated by the
Directors and subject to be approved by all relevant
PRC regulatory authorities including the CSRC, be
adjusted accordingly such that China Huadian,
following completion of the Proposed A Share Issue,
will continue to be interested in not less than 50% of
the then enlarged issued share capital of the Company.

RMB1.00 per A Share



. LETTER FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(4) Issue price and pricing process: A price range will be determined through pre-
marketing and a “book-building” process will be
conducted to determine an appropriate issue price for
the Proposed A Share Issue The final issue price and
the pricing process shall be determined by the board of
Directors, as proposed to be authorised at the AGM.

Currently, the issue price is expected to be an amount
ranging between 10 and 20 times of the Company’s
profits per share as disclosed (or will be disclosed) in
its then latest financial statements for the financial year
preceding that when the Proposed A Share Issue takes
place. However, the final issue price will, as may be
required under relevant PRC laws and regulations, be
subject to be approved by all relevant PRC regulatory
authorities including the CSRC and will be determined .
in accordance with strict market principles based on the
PRC securities market condition at the time when the
Proposed A Share Issue takes place. The Directors
currently expect that the final issue price for the
Proposed A Share Issue to be determined by the board
of Directors will not be lower than the three-month
average closing price of H Shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange immediately prior to the Proposed A
Share Issue taking place.

(5) Use of proceeds: If the Proposed A Share Issue is concluded and the
proceeds therefrom are remitted to the account of the
Company by 30th December, 2003, the Directors
currently intend to apply all net proceeds to be raised
from the Proposed A Share Issue (in an amount
currently targeted to be ranging between approximately
RMB1,500 million and approximately RMB2,500
million) in the manner and priority as follows:

1. RMB475.50 million will be used to fund the
Proposed Acquisition, details of which are set out
in the section headed “Proposed Acquisition”
below.

2. Approximately RMB370 million will be used, by
way of various installments (with the number of
such installments to be determined) after
completion of the Proposed A Share Issue to
finance the Phase II project of Guangan, details of
which project are set out in the paragraph headed
“Information on Guangan - Operations of
Guangan” in the section headed “Proposed
Acquisition” below.
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3.  Approximately RMB70 million to RMB200
million will be used, in installments after
completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, to
invest in the registered capital of Ningxia Yinglite
and/or to otherwise finance power projects to be
developed by Ningxia Yinglite. The exact amount
to be invested in Ningxia Yinglite shall, as
proposed to be authorised at the AGM, be
determined by the board of Directors by reference
to, and in turn impacting on, the scale of (and the
amount proposed to be raised from) the Proposed
A Share Issue, and the then financing
requirements of such projects. Details as to
whether and, if so, when such proposed
investment will materialise, and all the principal
terms in connection therewith are yet to be
considered and finalised.

4. Approximately RMB400 million to RMB1,000
million will be used, in installments after
completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, to
invest in or otherwise finance the future
development of Phase IV of Zouxian Power Plant
(which is wholly-owned by the Company), Phase
IT of Weifang Power Plant (whose development
rights are owned as to 60% by the Company), or
Qingdao Power Plant (which is owned as to 55%
by the Company, by way of contributing to the
registered capital of a limited liability company to
be converted from, and established to hold the
interest in, Qingdao Power Plant) and its Phase II
development. The exact project to be invested and
the relevant amount shall, as proposed to be
authorised at the AGM, be determined by the
board of Directors by reference to, and in turn
impacting on, the scale of (and the amount
proposed to be raised from) the Proposed A Share
Issue, and the then financing requirements of the
relevant project.

5. The balance of the proceeds, if any, will be used
as the Company’s general working capital.
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If the proceeds to be raised from the Proposed A Share
Issue turns out to be insufficient to fund all or any of
the projects (or any part thereof) as shall be determined
by the board of Directors as proposed to be authorised
at the AGM, it is the current intention of the Company
that any deficit will be funded out of its internal
resources.

If the Proposed A Share Issue is not concluded until
after 30th December, 2003, the proceeds, whenever
received by the Company, will, as currently intended
by the Directors, then be deployed in the manner and
priority as follows:

1. RMB237.70 million will be used to fund the
Proposed Acquisition (with the balance of the
consideration for the Proposed Acquisition
currently expected to be funded out of the
Company’s internal resources).

2.  Approximately RMB370 million will be used to
finance the Phase II project of Guangan in the
manner as described above.

3. Approximately RMB70 million to RMB200
million will be used to invest in projects to be
developed by Ningxia Yinglite in the manner as
described above.

4. Approximately RMB400 million to RMB1,000
million will be used to invest in or otherwise
finance the future development of Phase IV of
Zouxian Power Plant, Phase II of Weifang Power
Plant, or Qingdao Power Plant and its Phase II
development in the manner as described above.

5. Approximately RMB250 million will be used to
repay bank loans borrowed by the Company
within 2003 and are expected to be due by around
mid 2004. Total amount of bank loans borrowed
by the Company and was as at 30th April, 2003
(being the latest practicable date for ascertaining
such information) outstanding amounted to
approximately RMB6,100 million.
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2.2

6. The balance of the proceeds, if any, will be used
as the Company’s general working capital.

If the proceeds to be raised from the Proposed A
Share Issue, as in the case as described above,
turns out to be insufficient to fund all or any of the
projects (or any part thereof) as shall be
determined by the board of Directors as proposed
to be authorised at the AGM, it is the current
intention of the Company that any deficit will be
funded out of its internal resources.

Regardless of when the Proposed A Share Issue will
conclude and when the Company will actually receive
the proceeds therefrom, the Company (as proposed to
be authorised at the AGM) will, depending on the
circumstances at that time, apply all such proceeds to
fund the above items in an applicable priority.

The Proposed A Share [ssue (including the proposed issue of A Shares (in the form of unlisted
State-owned legal person shares) to China Huadian) shall be conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the CSRC. It should be noted that the Proposed A Share Issue and the
structure thereof (including, but not limited to, the scale of the Proposed A Share Issue and
the intended use of proceeds therefrom), upon being approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM, is also subject to the approval and/or endorsement of the CSRC, and
that of the Shanghai Stock Exchange in respect of the listing and trading on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange of such A Shares to be issued to the PRC public under the Proposed A Share
Issue.

Ancillary matters relating to the Proposed A Share Issue
2.2.1 Sharing of undistributed profits

After completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, the existing and new shareholders of
the Company shall, subject to be approved by the Company’s shareholders (all of whom
are, under current PRC laws and regulations, entitied to vote) at the AGM, be entitled to
mutual sharing of the Company’s undistributed retained profits when the Proposed A
Share Issue takes place.

2.2,2 Taking of necessary action by the Directors

The Directors shall, under circumstances that do not violate any PRC laws, regulatory
requirements and the Articles of Association and subject to be approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the AGM, be authorised to sign all documents, carry out all
procedures and take any other action as are necessary to effect, for the purpose of or
otherwise in connection with, and upon, the Proposed A Share Issue and the proposed
listing of such A Shares to be issued thereunder to the PRC public on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.
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2.2.3 Shareholders’ approvals to be sought at the AGM and effective period of such
approvals

The Proposed A Share Issue and the structure thereof as particularised above, including
(but not limited to) the intended use of proceeds to be raised from the Proposed A Share
Issue, the proposed listing of such A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share
Issue to the PRC public on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the proposed amendments to
be made to the Articles of Association to cater for the completion of the Proposed A
Share Issue as described in the section headed “Proposed amendments to the Articles of
Association” below, the mutual sharing of the Company’s undistributed profits between
its existing and new shareholders, and the authorisation of the Directors in such terms
and in such manner as set out above, are subject to be approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the AGM.

All resolutions to be proposed and sought at the AGM in respect of or otherwise
relating to the Proposed A Share Issue, if passed by the Company’s shareholders
thereat, are, in compliance with and legally required under the relevant PRC laws,
proposed to be effective for a non-extendable period which is proposed to be a period
of one year from the date of the AGM, such that if the Proposed A Share Issue is not
completed within such one year period, the relevant resolutions passed at the AGM will
no longer be effective and fresh resolutions (in, as currently contemplated by the
Directors, identical terms as those to be proposed and sought at the AGM) will then
(and, as currently contemplated, when the Directors decide to convene the Company’s
2003 annual general meeting) be required to be sought at that next annual general
meeting of the Company. Having said that, it is the current intention of the board of
Directors that the Proposed A Share Issue will, subject to the approval(s) by all relevant
PRC regulatory authorities including the CSRC being obtained, take place within one
year following the AGM. ’

As China Huadian is the controlling shareholder of the Company holding
approximately 53.56% of its entire issued share capital, the proposed issue of any of the
A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) under the Proposed
A Share Issue to China Huadian, if materialised, will constitute a connected transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules, and is subject to be approved by the
Independent Shareholders at the AGM with China Huadian abstaining from voting.
The board of Directors has appointed the Independent Board Committee to consider
and advise the Independent Shareholders on, among other things, the terms of the
proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share Issue, and has
appointed CLSA as the independent financial adviser to advise the Independent Board
Committee. As confirmed by the Company’s legal advisers as to PRC laws, under
current PRC laws and regulations, except for the resolution regarding the proposed
issue of A Shares to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share Issue, China Huadian is
not required to abstain from voting in respect of all other resolutions relating to the
Proposed A Share Issue and to be sought at the AGM. Further, in the event that the
resolution to approve the proposed issue by the Company of a maximum of
765,000,000 new A Shares under the Proposed A Share Issue is not passed at the AGM,
the resolution regarding the proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian under the
Proposed A Share Issue, even if passed, will not become effective.

— 10—
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Reasons for and the benefits of the Proposed A Share Issue

The Proposed A Share Issue, if completed, is expected to enlarge the shareholders’ base and
the capital base of the Company, and will open a new funding source of RMB denominated
equity capital for the Company and is thereby expected to increase the Company’s capital and
debt raising capacity. With the injection of new capital, the Company’s cost of capital will be
lower and its capital structure will be improved, thus facilitating the Company to further

develop its business in the development, construction, operation and ownership of power
plants in the PRC.

Effects of the Proposed A Share Issue on the Company’s capital structure

Set out below is a summary of the shareholding structure of the Company immediately before
and immediately upon the completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, based on the assumption
that a total of 765,000,000 new A Shares will be issued under the Proposed A Share Issue, out
of which 765,000,000 new A Shares, 196,000,000 A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-
owned legal person shares) will be allocated and issued to China Huadian, and the remaining
569,000,000 A Shares (which will be listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) will be issued to
individuals and institutional investors in the PRC (i.e., the PRC public):

Immediately Approximate,  Immediately  Approximate
before completion  shareholding upon completion  shareholding
of the Proposed percentage of the Proposed percentage
Type of shares A Share Issue (%) A Share Issue (%)
1. Unlisted domestic shares
Holdér of
State-owned
legal person shares -
China Huadian 2,815,075,430 53.56  3,011,075430 50.01
Other holders
of domestic shares 1,009,980,770 19.21  1,009,980,770 16.77
Sub-total: 3,825,056,200 72797 4,021,056,200 66.78
2. Listed shares
A Share shareholders 569,000,000 9.45
H Share shareholders 1,431,028,000 2723 1,431,028,000 2377
Sub-total: 1,431,028,000 27.23  2,000,028,000 33.22
3. Total 5,256,084,200 100.00  6,021,084,200 100.00

— 11—
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Assuming a total of 765,000,000 new A Shares are issued under the Proposed A Share Issue,
of which a total of 196,000,000 new A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal
person shares) are allocated and issued to China Huadian, immediately following completion
of the Proposed A Share Issue, China Huadian will be interested in altogether 3,011,075,430
State-owned legal person shares of the Company, representing an aggregate of approximately
50.01% of the total enlarged issued share capital of the Company following completion of the
Proposed A Share [ssue. The aggregate amount of H Shares (i.e., 1,431,028,000 H Shares)
and such A Shares to be issued and held by the public (i.e., 569,000,000 A Shares) following
completion of the Proposed A Share Issue represents approximately 33.22% of the then total
enlarged issued share capital of the Company.

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

To cater for, and following completion of, the Proposed A Share Issue, amendments will, in
accordance with laws and regulations prescribed by the relevant PRC authorities including the
CSRC stipulating provisions mandatory or otherwise recommended for inclusion in articles of
associations of PRC listed companies (including the Guide, the Standards, the Regulatory
Opinions and the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions), be made to the Articles of
Association in compliance or otherwise in accordance with all such legal and regulatory
requirements as will then be applicable to the Company. Such proposed amendments to be
made to the Articles of Association are subject to be approved by the Company’s shareholders
at the AGM, and are conditional upon obtaining any approval, endorsement or registration as
may be necessary from the relevant PRC authorities.

The proposed amendments to be made to the Articles of Association primarily aim to enhance
the corporate governance of the Company and, in accordance with the above-mentioned PRC
laws and regulations, deal with matters relating to a number of areas including: rights of
shareholders, authority of, and procedures at, shareholders’ general meetings, qualifications of
Directors and supervisors, authority of, and procedures for, the board of Directors, procedures
for nominating and electing Directors, duties of the Company secretary, duties of the general
manager and internal audit and certain other related matters. Details regarding such proposed
amendments are set out in Part B of Appendix I.

The Directors believe that.such proposed amendments are a practical opportunity to update
the Articles of Association, and will ensure that mechanisms will be in place for the Company,
as a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and, upon completion of the Proposed
A Share Issue, expected to be listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, to continue to adhere to
the highest standards of corporate governance.
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5.1

PROPOSED CHANGE OF THE COMPANY’S NAME AND ASSOCIATED
AMENDMENT PROPOSED TO BE MADE TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

As announced by the Company in its announcements dated 16th April and 9th May, 2003, in
view of the reallocation of controlling shareholding interest in the Company and the
substitution of China Huadian for Shandong Electric Power (Group) Corporation as the
Company’s immediate controlling shareholder in April, 2003, the Directors, on 15th April,
2003, resolved to change the name of the Company from “l| REE ERFHER D ER L
7] Shandong International Power Development Company Limited” to “2 E B E H A%
A PR 2 7] Huadian Power International Corporation Limited”. In connection with the
proposed change of the Company’s name, among other provisions of the Articles of
Association, Article 2 is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“Article 2 Registered name of the Company

Chinese: ZEEEEENRDERE QA
(Abbreviation: T &)

English:  Huadian Power International Corporation Limited
(Abbreviation: HDPI)”

The above proposed amendment, together with other amendments proposed to be made to the
Articles of Association to cater for, or otherwise in connection with, the reallocation of
controlling shareholding interest in the Company as described above and the proposed change
of the Company’s name and as set out in Part A of Appendix I, is subject to the approval by
the shareholders of the Company being obtained at the AGM.

PROPOSED ACQUISITION

The Guangan Acquisition Agreement

The principal terms of the Guangan Acquisition Agreement are set out as follows:

Date : 9th May, 2003

Parties : the Company; and
China Huadian

Interest to be acquired : 80% of the equity interest in Guangan
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Consideration : RMB475.50 million (approximately HK$448.58
nmillion), which was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and China Huadian
based on the valuation of the net assets of Guangan in
the amount of approximately RMB594.40 million as at
31st December, 2002 (as assessed by China United
Assets Appraisal Co. Ltd., a State-approved
independent PRC valuer), and taking into account
Guangan’s future development potential (including the
development of its Phase II project as described in the
paragraph headed “Information on Guangan -
Operations of Guangan” below).

Under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, the
consideration shall be adjusted with reference to 80%
of the difference between the audited net asset value of
Guangan as at 31st December, 2002 and that as at the
date of completion, both to be determined in
accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards and
Regulations. The independent auditors are to be jointly
appointed by the Company and China Huadian. Such
adjustment (to be determined in the manner as
described above) shall, under the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement, be settled between the Company and China
Huadian on or before 30th April, 2004. If the
adjustment is positive and the Company is then
required to pay such adjustment to China Huadian,
such adjustment is currently expected to be funded out
of the Company’s internal resources. Shareholders
should note that there are certain differences between
the accounting treatment under the PRC Accounting
Standards and Regulations and that under the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Payment terms : The consideration (or part thereof but excluding the
adjustment thereto in the manner as described above) is
currently expected to be funded out of the proceeds of
the Proposed A Share Issue.

According to the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, if
the Company’s application in respect of the Proposed A
Share Issue is approved by the CSRC and the Company
receives the proceeds thereof on or before 30th
December, 2003, the Company shall pay China
Huadian such consideration in cash in a lump sum on
or before 30th December, 2003. If, however, the
Proposed A Share Issue is not concluded until after
30th December, 2003, the Company shall pay the
consideration to China Huadian by way of two
installments as follows:

— 14 —
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(a) RMB237.80 million, representing slightly over
50% of the consideration, shall be paid by the
Company to China Huadian in cash by 30th
December, 2003 (and which RMB237.80 million
is currently expected to be funded out of the
Company’s internal resources); and

(b) RMB237.70 million, representing the balance of
the consideration, shall be paid by the Company in
cash within five business days after the Company
receives the proceeds of the Proposed A Share
Issue and in any event by 30th June, 2004.

Conditions precedent : The Guangan Acquisition Agreement is conditional
upon the fulfillment of the following conditions
precedent:

(a) approval of the Guangan Acquisition Agreement
and all transactions contemplated thereunder by
the Independent Shareholders being obtained at
the AGM; and

(b) the valuation of Guangan as at 31st December,
2002 having been filed with and recorded at the
PRC State-owned Assets Management Authority.

In the event that any of the above conditions are not
fulfilled by 30th December, 2003, the Company may
elect to terminate the Guangan Acquisition Agreement.

The Guangan Acquisition Agreement is, however, not
conditional upon completion of the Proposed A Share
Issue.

Completion : After the conditions precedent set out above have been
fulfilled, the Company and China Huadian shall
proceed with completion in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Guangan Acquisition Agreement,
and completion is, under the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement subject to compliance with all applicable
PRC laws and regulations, deemed to take place on
30th December, 2003.

15 —
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Other material term : Under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, the
Company has agreed and undertaken to China Huadian
that at any time during the subsistence of the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement, when requested by China
Huadian, the Company will assume China Huadian’s
guarantee liabilities (in an aggregate amount not
exceeding RMB1,700 million (excluding interest)) in
respect of two tranches of bank loans borrowed by
Guangan before completion of the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement. Such two tranches of bank
loans borrowed by Guangan (including interest accrued
thereon, with the aggregate amount of such interest
which was, as at the Latest Practicable Date,
outstanding being approximately RMB18 million) are
currently repayable by 2007 and 2009, respectively,
and collateral-free.

Save as set out above, the Company has made no other
guarantee in favour of China Huadian under the
Guangan Acquisition Agreement.

5.2 Information on Guangan
5.2.1 Background information on the Sichuan Province

* Sichuan is one of the largest province in China. It covers an area of 485,000 sq.kms
with a population of 83.29 million. Sichuan has experienced rapid growth since China
implemented “Develop the West of China” strategy. GDP growth for the recent three
years averaged above 9%. For the year of 2002, GDP of Sichuan Province was RMB
487.5 billion, a 10.6% increase over that of 2001, compared with the national average
growth rate of 8%.

The power industry in Sichuan shows strong growth in line with the Province’s
economic development. By the end of 2002, total installed capacity in Sichuan was
.approximately 18,000 MW, among which 11,854.6 MW was contributed by its hydro
plants and the remaining 6,145.4 MW by thermal power plants. Total electricity
generation reached 72.38 billion KWh in 2002, an increase of 13.72% over that in 2001
(while total electricity generated in 2001 experienced an increase of 14.40% over that
in 2000). Total power consumption of Sichuan Province in 2002 was approximately
66.05 billion KWh, an increase of 12.03% over that in 2001 (while total power
consumption in 2001 experienced an increase of 13.11% over that in 2000), compared
with the national average growth rate of 11.6%. In the first quarter of 2003, electricity
generation in Sichuan reached approximately 14.95 billion KWh (increased by 8.27%
when- compared with that for the same period last year), resulting from (and, in turn,
evidencing and reinforcing) a continuous growth of power demand in Sichuan
throughout 2002 and into 2003.
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5.2.2

5.2.3

Guangan

MINEZ#EABREAMT2A S (Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company
Limited), a company established in the PRC, is owned as to 80% by China Huadian and
as to the remaining 20% by a third party (which has, at a shareholders’ meeting of
Guangan in late April, 2003, consented to the Proposed Acquisition) independent of the
Company, its subsidiaries or any of their chief executives, directors or substantial
shareholders or any associates of any of them. Guangan, established in 1996, is located
at Guangan City, Sichuan Province. It is principally engaged in the business of
generating electricity, with a total planned installed capacity of 1,200 MW to be fully
completed by 2004. Following completion of the Proposed Acquisition, Guangan is
expected to become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which will be
interested as to 80% of Guangan’s equity interest.

Operations of Guangan

The Phase I project of Guangan, which comprises two 300MW coal-fired power
generating units, started commercial operation in October, 1999 and February, 2000,
respectively. Total investment, which has been fully paid, deployed in the construction
of Guangan’s Phase I project amounted to approximately RMB2,731 million.

The Phase II project of Guangan, which comprises two 300MW coal-fired power
generating units, started construction in September, 2002. These two units are expected
to be put into commercial operation by August, 2004 and December, 2004, respectively.
Total investment to be deployed in the construction of Guangan’s Phase Il project is
expected to amount to approximately RMB2,285 million. Construction will be
financed as to 20% by shareholders’ equity (with investment from its existing
shareholders in proportion to their current equity interest in Guangan) and 80% (in the
amount of approximately RMB1,828 million) by bank loans.

All electricity generated by Guangan is sold onto Sichuan Power Grid. Total electricity
sales of Guangan in 2001 increased by 5.1% compared with that of 2000. In 2002,
Guangan’s on-grid electricity increased by 47.06% compared to that of 2001. The
strong growth was primarily due to increase in electricity demand in Sichuan Province.
The trend of growth continues in 2003 as Guangan’s first quarter electricity supply
increased by 31% to 1.215 billion KWh over the same period of 2002.

Coal required by Guangan is primarily supplied from Sichuan Huayinshan Mineral
Bureau and other local coal mines near Guangan city.
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5.24

The following table sets out selected operating data of Guangan for the two years ended
31st December, 2001 and 2002:

2002 2001

Total electricity generated
(million kWh) 2,983.3 2,024.3
Total electricity sold (million kWh) 2,766.2 ' 1,881.0
Equivalent availability factor (%) 93.6 95.7
Capacity factor (%) 56.8 38.5
Average utilization hours (hours) 4,972.2 3,373.8
Standard coal consumption rate for electricity

sold (grams/kWh) 351.0 353.0
Weighted average on-grid power rate (Yuan/MWh)

(net of value added tax) 214.0 212.7
Financial information on Guangan

As at 31st December, 2002, the net asset value attributable to 80% of the equity interest
in Guangan, determined in accordance with the accounting policies consistent with
those adopted by the Company under International Financial Reporting Standards, was
approximately RMB477.5 million (approximately HK450.47 million).

The net operating results attributable to 80% of the equity interest in Guangan,
determined in accordance with the accounting policies consistent with those adopted by
the Company under International Financial Reporting Standards, were loss of
approximately RMB20.7 million (approximately HK$19.5 million) and profit of
approximately RMB25.8 million (approximately HK$24.3 million) for the two financial
years ended 31st December, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Set out below is certain financial information relating to Guangan for the two years
ended 31st December, 2001 and 2002. Such 2001 and 2002 financial information was
determined in accordance with the accounting policies consistent with those adopted by
the Company under International Financial Reporting Standards and was extracted from
the financial statements of Guangan audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants:
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2002 2001
(RMB’000) . (RMB’000)
Total assets 2,783,184 2,717,139
Cash 54,741 13,770
Total borrowings
Current borrowings 417,000 442,000
Non-current borrowings 1,610,090 1,540,090
Net assets
596,832 606,635
Turnover 592,028 400,160
Depreciation 122,123 122,000
Operating profit 160,067 82,948
Financial costs (net) 111,886 121,532
Profit / (loss) before tax 48,181 (38,584)
Income tax charge / (credit) 15,899 (12,733)
Applicable tax rate 33% 33%
Net profit / (loss) after tax 32,282 (25.851)

The results of Guangan improved from a net loss of RMB25.85 million in 2001 to a net
profit of RMB32.28 million in 2002. The increase in Guangan’s profit resulted mainly
from a 47.9% increase in revenue from 2001 to 2002, which (in turn) was mainly
attributable to the 47.1% increase in electricity sold to the Sichuan Power Grid.
Guangan’s performance went along with the overall growth of the power industry in
Sichuan. Total power consumption of Sichuan Province in 2002 increased by 12.03%
over that in 2001, coupled with minor new capacity increase of 0.49%, while power
generation by coal-fired generators increased by, on average, 33% in 2002.

For the first quarter of 2003, revenue generated by Guangan from selling electricity
increased to approximately RMB266.9 million (unaudited), an increment of 32.2%
compared with that for the same period in 2002. Guangan achieved a net profit of
RMB59.8 million (unaudited) for the first quarter of 2003, representing a 130%
increase over that for the same period in 2002. This is because power demand in the
Sichuan Province increased significantly and the proportion of coal-fired power
generation was greater during the low-water period (with less hydro-power supply
during such period) in the first quarter of 2003.
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5.2.5 Financial impact of the Proposed Acquisition

Assuming that the Proposed Acquisition had taken place and had been completed on 1st
January, 2002, the net profit contribution to the Group would be RMB25.8 million or
approximately 2.2% (as compared with the Group’s audited net profit in the amount of
RMB1,181.7 million for the year 2002). The Company believes that with the
anticipated growth of the power markets in Sichuan and the commencement of
commercial operation of Guangan’s Phase 1l project, the Proposed Acquisition will
contribute more positively to the profitability of the Company.

5.3 Reasons for and benefits of the Proposed Acquisition

With the reallocation of the Company’s controlling shareholding interest to China Huadian
(one of China’s five national power group enterprises) in April, 2003, the Company has
reinforced its strategy to become a national player in power generation. The expansion
strategy will be implemented by means of both acquisition and building greenfield projects.

As disclosed in the announcements dated 8th April and 9th May, 2003 and the 2002 annual
results announcement issued by the Company, China Huadian, as the controlling sharcholder
of the Company, has agreed and undertaken to the Company that, for so long as China
Huadian retains a controlling shareholding interest in the Company, the Company is (and will
continue to serve as) China Huadian’s primary vehicle for developing power projects and a
principal power-generating enterprise, and the Company shall (at its option) have a
preferential right to acquire, develop, construct, own and/or operate China Huadian’s interests
in all of its power plants and power projects within the Shandong Province or other areas in
which China Huadian has operation. The Proposed Acquisition strategically signifies the
expansion of the Company’s business outside of Shandong Province into other provinces in
China, and reflects the support that China Huadian has, since its becoming the Company’s
controlling shareholder, been demonstrating in favour of the Company’s developments.

Having obtained 22% market share in Shandong Province and being the largest power
generator locally, the Company is seeking to enter into new markets around the country. The
Proposed Acquisition enables the Company to tap the fast growing Sichuan Province and to
grow market share in places other than Shandong Province. The fast growing electricity
demand in Sichuan confronted with minor capacity expansion in 2004 and 2005 is expected to
bring favorable economic return to Guangan in the next few years. By acquiring interests in
power plants other than those in Shandong Province, the Company will be able to achieve
geographical diversification that is expected to mitigate operational risks due to concentrating
within a smaller market.

The Proposed Acquisition includes assets of two 300MW coal-fired power generating units
that has already been put into commercial operation, plus two 300 MW coal-fired power
generating units expected to be put inte commercial operation by 2004. The Proposed
Acquisition will immediately increase the generating capacity managed by the Company by
600 MW in 2003 and another 600 MW in 2004. This will enable the Company to capture the
strong growth in electricity demand countrywide experienced in recent years.
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6.1

The Company has appointed China International Capital Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited as
its financial adviser in respect of the Proposed Acquisition. The consideration of RMB475.50
million (approximately HK$448.58 million) for the Proposed Acquisition was determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the Company and China Huadian based on the
valuation of the net assets of Guangan in the amount of RMB594.40 million as at 31st
December, 2002 as assessed by China United Assets Appraisal Co. Ltd. (a State-approved
independent PRC valuer), and taking into account Guangan’s future development potential
(including the development of its Phase II project as described above). Such consideration of
RMB475.50 million represents the valuation of the net assets attributable to 80% of the equity
interest in Guangan as at 31st December, 2002. In 2002, the total net profit of Guangan was
approximately RMB32.3 million, of which RMB25.8 million was attributable to the 80%
equity interest in Guangan to be acquired by the Company. The Company believes that with
the anticipated growth of the power markets in Sichuan, the Proposed Acquisition will
contribute more positively to the profitability of the Company.

The entering into of the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and the consummation of the
Proposed Acquisition are consistent with the Company’s long-term business strategy and are,
in the opinion of the Directors, in the commercial interests of the Company. In view of the
circumstances stated hereinabove, the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, consider the terms of the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and the consideration for
the Proposed Acquisition set out therein (which consideration was primarily determined based
on the valuation of Guangan’s net assets in the amount of approximately RMB594.40 million
as at 31st December, 2002 assessed by China United Assets Appraisal Co. Ltd., a State-
approved independent PRC valuer), which were determined after arm’s length negotiations,
are fair and reasonable so far as the Company and its shareholders are concerned.

Connected party relationship

As China Huadian is the controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately
53.56% of its entire issued share capital, the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions
contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement constitute connected transactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules and are subject to the approval of the Independent
Shareholders being obtained at the AGM with China Huadian abstaining from voting.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Proposed A Share Issue

The Proposed A Share Issue (including the proposed issue of A Shares (in the form of unlisted
State-owned legal person shares) to China Huadian) shall be conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the CSRC. It should also be noted that the Proposed A Share Issue and
the structure thereof, upon being approved by the shareholders of the Company and, as the
case may be, the Independent Shareholders, at the AGM, is subject to the approval of the
CSRC, and that of the Shanghai Stock Exchange in respect of the listing and trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange of such A Shares to be issued to the PRC public under the Proposed
A Share Issue.
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6.2

6.3

As China Huadian is the controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately
53.56% of its entire issued share capital, the proposed issue of any of the A Shares (in the
form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) under the Proposed A Share Issue to China
Huadian, if materialised, will constitute a connected transaction for the Company under the
Listing Rules, and is subject to be approved by the Independent Shareholders at the AGM
with China Huadian abstaining from voting. The board of Directors has appointed the
Independent Board Committee to consider and advise the Independent Shareholders on,
among other things, the terms of the proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian under the
Proposed-A Share Issue, and has appointed CLSA as the independent financial adviser to
advise the Independent Board Committee.

There is no assurance that the Proposed A Share Issue will materialise or will proceed in
such manner and in such terms as are set out herein. Investors are therefore advised to
exercise caution when dealing in the H Shares. Further details regarding the Proposed A
Share Issue will, when the Proposed A Share Issue materialises, be disclosed in
newspapers in the PRC, and the Company will then publish an announcement in
newspapers in Hong Kong.

The Proposed Acquisition - Listing Rules’ implications

The Proposed Acquisition constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company .under Rule
14.12(1) of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as China Huadian is the controlling shareholder
of the Company holding approximately 53.56% of its entire issued share capital, the Proposed
Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement
constitute connected transactions for the Company, and are subject to the approval by the
Independent Shareholders being-obtained at the AGM with China Huadian abstaining from
voting. As mentioned above, the Company has appointed China International Capital
Corporation (Hong Kong) Limited as its financial adviser in respect of the Proposed
Acquisition. The board of Directors has also appointed the Independent Board Committee to
consider and advise the Independent Shareholders on, among other things, the terms of the
Proposed Acquisition and the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, and has appointed CLSA as
the independent financial adviser to advise the Independent Board Committee.

The AGM

On 9th May, 2003, the board of Directors resolved to convene the AGM to be held on
Tuesday, 24th June, 2003 to approve, among other things including the Company’s financial
statements for the financial year ended 31st December, 2002, the Proposed A Share Issue and
the structure thereof, the amendments proposed to be made to the Articles of Association and
the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement. A notice dated 9th May, 2003 convening the AGM, together with the reply slip
for attendance, proxy form and a copy of the Company’s announcement dated 9th May, 2003,
was despatched to the shareholders of the Company on 10th May, 2003.
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Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on Friday, 23rd May, 2003 are entitled to attend the AGM upon completion of the
necessary registration procedures. The H share register of members of the Company has
since Sunday, 25th May, 2003 been closed until Monday, 23rd June, 2003, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of H shares will be effected. Shareholders of H
Shares intending to attend the AGM should have lodged their respective instrument(s) of
transfer and the relevant share certificate(s) to Hong Kong Registrars Limited, the H share
registrar of the Company, by 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 23rd May, 2003.

If you are eligible, and intend, to attend the Company’s 2002 annual general meeting, please
complete and return the reply slip for attendance enclosed with the Company’s notice of the
AGM in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible and in any event
by Tuesday, 3rd June, 2003. Whether or not you will attend the AGM, you are requested to
complete and return the proxy form enclosed with the Company’s notice of the AGM in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon. Completion and return of the proxy form
will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the annual general meeting or
any adjournment thereof should you so wish.

RECOMMENDATION

Your attention is drawn to the letter from the Independent Board Committee which is set out
on pages 25 to 26 of this circular. The text of a letter from CLSA, the independent financial
adviser to the Independent Board Committee, containing its advice and the principal factors
and reasons taken into consideration in relation to the terms regarding the proposed issue of A
Shares by the Company to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share Issue, the Proposed
Acquisition and the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and all transactions contemplated
thereunder, is set out on pages 27 to 38 of this circular.

The Independent Board Committee, having taken into account the advice of CLSA, consider
that the terms regarding the proposed issue of A Shares by the Company to China Huadian
under the Proposed A Share Issue, the Proposed Acquisition and the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement and all transactions contemplated thereunder are all fair and reasonable so far as
the Company and its shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, the Independent Board
Committee recommends that the Independent Shareholders vote at the AGM in favour of:

(a) the special resolution that out of the total number of new A Shares to be issued by the
Company under the Proposed A Share Issue, 2 maximum of 196,000,000 new A Shares
(in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) are to be allocated and issued
to China Huadian; and

(b) the ordinary resolution to approve, confirm and ratify the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement and its terms, the entering into and the execution thereof by and on behalf of
the Company and all transactions contemplated thereunder; and to authorise any Director
to sign or execute all such documents and/or to do all such things and acts as he may
consider necessary or expedient for the purpose of implementing or otherwise effecting
any transaction contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement or any other
matter incidental thereto and in the interest of the Company.
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8. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of the board of Directors of
Shandong International Power Development Company Limited
HE Gong
Chairman
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WREBBRERAXBMBERLQ

SHANDONG INTERNATIONAL
POWER DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(A Sino-foreign investment joint stock company limited by shares incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)

Legal address and head office:
14 Jingsan Road

Jinan, Shangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China

30th May, 2003

To the Independent Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

We refer to the circular (the “Circular”) dated 30th May, 2003 to the shareholders of the
Company of which this letter forms part. Unless the context requires otherwise, terms and
expressions defined in the Circular shall have the same meanings in this letter.

We have been appointed to advise the Independent Shareholders in connection with terms
regarding the proposed issue of A Shares by the Company to China Huadian under the Proposed A
Share Issue, the Proposed Acquisition and the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and all transactions
contemplated thereunder, details of all of which are set out in the letter from the board of Directors
contained in the Circular.

As China Huadian is the controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately
53.56% of its entire issued share capital, the proposed issue of any of the A Shares (in the form of
unlisted State-owned legal person shares) under the Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian, if
materialised, will constitute a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules, and
is subject to be approved by the Independent Shareholders at the AGM with China Huadian
abstaining from voting. .

The Proposed Acquisition constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under Rule
14.12(1) of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as China Huadian is the controlling shareholder of the
Company, the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement also constitute connected transactions for the Company, and are subject to
the approval by the Independent Shareholders being obtained at the AGM with China Huadian
abstaining from voting.

— 25—




LETTER FROM THE INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

We wish to draw your attention to the letter of advice issued by CLSA which is set out on
pages 27 to 38 of the Circular. We have discussed that letter and the advice contained therein with
CLSA.

Having considered, among other things, the factors and reasons considered by, and the
advice of, CLSA, as stated in the aforementioned letter, we are of the opinion that the terms
regarding the proposed issue of A Shares by the Company to China Huadian under the Proposed A
Share Issue, the Proposed Acquisition and the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and all transactions
contemplated thereunder are all fair and reasonable so far as the Company and its shareholders are
concerned. Accordingly, we recommend that the Independent Shareholders vote at the AGM in
favour of:

(a) the special resolution as set out in the Company’s notice of the AGM dated 9th May,
2003 that out of the total number of new A Shares to be issued by the Company under the
Proposed A Share Issue, a maximum of 196,000,000 new A Shares (in the form of
unlisted State-owned legal person shares) are to be allocated and issued to China
Huadian; and

(b) the ordinary resolution as set out in the Company’s notice of the AGM to approve,
confirm and ratify the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and its terms, the entering into
and the execution thereof by and on behalf of the Company and all transactions
contemplated thereunder; and to authorise any Director to sign or execute all such
documents and/or to do all such things and acts as he may consider necessary or
expedient for the purpose of implementing or otherwise effecting any transaction
contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement or any other matter incidental
thereto and in the interest of the Company.

Yours faithfully,
DING Changhao
KUNG Shaindow

Independent Board Committee
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The following is the text of the letter of advice dated 30th May, 2003 from CLSA to the Independent
Board Committee in respect of the terms regarding the proposed issue of A Shares by the Company
to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share Issue, the Proposed Acquisition and the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement and all transactions contemplated thereunder prepared for the purposes of
incorporation into this circular:

30th May, 2003

To the Independent Board Committee of
Shangdong International Power Development Company Limited

Dear Sirs,
DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

PROPOSED APPLICATION TO ISSUE A SHARES TO CHINA HUADIAN
PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF EQUITY INTEREST IN GUANGAN
FROM CHINA HUADIAN

We refer to our engagement under which CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited (“CLSA”) has
been appointed to advise the Independent Board Committee in connection with the terms of the
proposed issue of A Shares under the Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian and the Proposed
Acquisition. Pursvant to the Listing Rules, the proposed issue of A Shares under the Proposed A
Share Issue to China Huadian, if materialized, will constitute a connected transaction for the
Company, and the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement constitute connected transactions for the Company, and are both subject to
the approval of the Independent Shareholders at a general meeting. Details of the proposed issue of
A shares under the Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian and the Proposed Acquisition are set
out in the letter from the board of Directors included in the circular dated 30th May, 2003 (the
“Circular”) issued by the Company to its shareholders (“Shareholders” and individually each a
“Shareholder”). This letter has been prepared for inclusion in the Circular and terms used in this
letter have the same meanings as defined in the Circular unless the context otherwise requires.

In our capacity as independent financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee, our role is
to give an independent opinion as to whether the proposed issue of A Shares under the Proposed A
Share Issue to China Huadian and the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated
under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement are fair and reasonable insofar as the Independent
Shareholders are concerned. Our opinion letter to the Independent Board Committee has been
prepared and delivered in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of assisting the Independent Board Committee in its duties to evaluate the terms of the proposed
issue of A Shares under the Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian and the Proposed
Acquisition, and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and for
no other reason. The assumptions made and the analysis conducted in our letter were undertaken in
accordance with the customs and practices employed in similar transactions in Hong Kong.
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In formulating our opinion, we have relied on the information, opinions and facts supplied, and
representations made to us, by the Directors and representatives of the Company (including those
contained or referred to in the Circular) and have assumed that all such information, opinions, facts
and representations, which have been provided by the Directors and such representatives, and for
which they are wholly responsible, are true and accurate in all respects. We have also relied on
certain information available to the public and we have assumed such information to be accurate
and reliable, and we have not independently verified the accuracy of such information. Further, we
have relied on the representations of the Directors that they have made all reasonable inquiries,
and to the best of their knowledge and belief, that there are no other facts, the omission of which
would make any statement contained in the Circular untrue or misleading. We have also assumed
that statements and representations made or referred to in the Circular were accurate at the time
they were made and continue to be accurate at the date of despatch of the Circular.

We consider that we have reviewed sufficient information to enable us to reach an informed view
and to justify relying on the accuracy of the information provided in the Circular as well as to
provide a reasonable basis for our advice. We have not, however, made any independent evaluation
or appraisal of, nor have we conducted any form of independent investigation into, the business
affairs or assets and liabilities of Guangan or the Company. Additionally, we did not conduct any
physical inspection of the properties or facilities of Guangan or the Company. It is not within our
terms of reference to comment on the commercial feasibility of the Proposed A Share Issue, the
proposed issue of A Shares under the Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian and the Proposed
Acquisition, which remain the responsibility of the Directors. As the independent financial adviser
to the Independent Board Committee, we have not been involved in the negotiations in respect of
the terms of the Proposed A Share Issue, the proposed issue of A Shares under the Proposed A
Share Issue to China Huadian and the Proposed Acquisition. Our opinion with regard to the terms
thereof has been made on the assumption that all obligations to be performed by each of the parties
to the Proposed A Share Issue and the Proposed Acquisition will be fully performed in accordance
with the terms thereof.

Our opinion is necessarily based upon market, economic and other conditions as they existed and
could be evaluated on, and on the information publicly available to us as of the date of the opinion.
We have no obligation to update this opinion to take into account events occurring after the date
that this opinion is delivered to the Independent Board Committee. As a result, circumstances
could develop prior to completion of the Proposed A Share Issue and the Proposed Acquisition
that, if known at the time we rendered our opinion, would have altered our opinion.

CLSA is a licensed securities adviser and corporate finance adviser under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and together with its affiliates provide
a full range of investment banking and broking services, which, in the course of normal trading
activities, may from time to time effect transactions and hold securities, including derivative
securities, of the Company for our own account and the accounts of customers. We will receive a
fee from the Company for rendering this opinion. The Company has also agreed to indemnify
CLSA and certain related persons against certain liabilities and expenses in connection with this
engagement.
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PRINCIPAL FACTORS AND REASONS CONSIDERED

In arriving at our opinion with regard to the proposed issue of A Shares under the Proposed A
Share Issue to China Huadian and the terms of the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions
contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, we have considered the principal factors
and reasons set out below. None of these factors or reasons considered by us was assigned a
greater significance than any other. We did not form a conclusion as to whether any individual
factors or reasons, considered in isolation, supported or failed to support our opinion, although we
are not aware of any matter which would have rendered our opinion differently by the results of
our analyses of any such individual factors or reasons. Rather, in reaching our conclusion, we have
considered the results of the analyses in light of each other and ultimately reached our opinion
based on the results of all analyses taken as a whole.

THE PROPOSED ISSUE OF A SHARES TO CHINA HUADIAN

Pursuant to an announcement dated 9 May, 2003, the Directors announced that the board of
Directors resolved that the Company shall apply: (a) to the CSRC for the issue of a maximum of
765 million new A Shares, of which a maximum of 196 million new A Shares (in the form of
unlisted State-owned legal person shares) are proposed to be allocated and issued to China
Huadian to demonstrate the Company’s appreciation to China Huadian for its support in favour of
the Company’s development, with the remaining portion of the new A Shares to be issued under
the Proposed A Share Issue (which are proposed to be listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) to
be issued to individuals and institutional investors in the PRC (i.e. the PRC public); and (b) to the
Shanghai Stock Exchange for the listing of such A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share
Issue to the PRC public as mentioned above on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

For further details regarding the structure of the Proposed A Share Issue, please refer to the letter
from the board of Directors contained in the Circular.

In connection with the proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian under the Proposed A Share
Issue, China Huadian issued a written commitment on 7th May, 2003 in favour of the Company
and a confirmation letter on 8th May, 2003 that China Huadian will fully subscribe, at the same
price as the issue price under the Proposed A Share Issue, for all A Shares (in the form of unlisted
State-owned legal person shares) to be allocated to it under the Proposed A Share Issue, and has in
effect irrevocably agreed not to dispose of or otherwise deal with such A Shares until such time
when the PRC government releases any new policy regulating the exchange trading of State-owned
shares and legal person shares. The Directors are not aware to the best of their knowledge as to
whether and, if so, when any such new policy may be released.

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, the Proposed A Share Issue, if completed, is
expected to enlarge the shareholders’ base and the capital base of the Company, and will open a
new funding source of RMB denominated equity capital for the Company and is thereby expected
to increase the Company’s capital and debt raising capacity. The Directors also believe, with the
injection of new capital, the Company’s cost of capital will be lower and its capital structure will
be improved, thus facilitating the Company to further develop its business in the development,
construction, operation and ownership of power plants in the PRC.

—29 __




LETTER FROM CLSA

Assuming that a total of 765 million new A Shares are issued under the Proposed A Share Issue, of
which a total of 196 million new A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person
shares) are allocated and issued to China Huadian, the approximate shareholding percentage of
China Huadian in the Company will be diluted from 53.56% immediately before completion of the
Proposed A Share Issue to 50.01% immediately upon completion of the Proposed A Share Issue.
The aggregate shareholding of the independent shareholders other than China Huadian will
increase from approximately 46.44% immediately before completion of the Proposed A Share
Issue to approximately 49.99% immediately upon completion of the Proposed A Share Issue. The
aggregate shareholding of the original H shareholders will be diluted from approximately 27.23%
immediately before completion of the Proposed A Share Issue to approximately 23.77%
immediately upon completion of the Proposed A Share Issue. The aggregate amount of H Shares
and such A Shares to be issued and held by the public following completion of the Proposed A
Share Issue will represent approximately 33.22% of the then total enlarged issued share capital of
the Company. We also note that following completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, China
Huadian will continue to be the controlling shareholder of the Company.

In the event that the final number of A Shares to be issued under the Proposed A Share Issue is less
than the maximum of 765 million new A Shares currently contemplated, China Huadian, as
currently contemplated by the Directors and subject to be approved by all relevant PRC regulatory
authorities including the CSRC, will be issued such number of new A Shares such that the
shareholding of China Huadian in the Company will not be lower than 50%.

The Company and the Directors have confirmed that they believe that maintaining such close
relationship with China Huadian is instrumental to the future continuing success of the Company.

Whilst we are to opine on the terms of the proposed issue of A shares under the Proposed A Share
Issue to China Huadian insofar as Independent Shareholders are concerned and not to opine on the
whole Proposed A Share Issue, we note that, based on the consolidated net asset value of
RMBS§,549.8 million of the Company according to its consolidated financial statements as at 31
December, 2002, the total number of issued shares of the Company of approximately 5,256 million
immediately before completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, the maximum number of 765
million new A Shares to be issued and the targeted range of net proceeds ranging between
approximately RMB1,500 million and approximately RMB2,500 million, the consolidated net
asset value per share of the Company would increase from approximately RMB1.62 immediately
before completion of the Proposed A Share Issue to a range of approximately RMB1.67 to
RMB1.84 immediately upon completion of the Proposed A Share Issue, representing an increase in
a range of approximately 2.6% to 12.8%. The net debt to equity ratio of the Company based on its
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December, 2002 would also decrease from
approximately 96.9% immediately before completion of the Proposed A Share Issue to a range of
approximately 82.4% to 74.9% immediately upon completion of the Proposed A Share Issue.

We also note that, based on the maximum number of 765 million new A Shares to be issued and
the targeted range of net proceeds ranging between approximately RMB1,500 million and
approximately RMB2,500 million, the implied target issue price per new A Share (net of expenses)
is in the range of approximately RMB1.96 and approximately RMB3.27. Compared to the three
month average closing price of the Company’s H Shares of approximately HKD1.76 (RMB1.87)
calculated as at the Latest Practicable Date, the implied target issue price per new A Share (net of
expenses) represents a premium in the range of approximately 4.9% and approximately 74.8%.
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As also stated in the letter from the board of Directors, the issue price is currently expected to be
an amount ranging between 10 and 20 times the Company’s profits per share as disclosed (or will
be disclosed) in its then latest financial statements for the financial year preceding the year during
which the Proposed A Share Issue takes place. Assuming that the Proposed A Share Issue will be
completed, as the Directors expect, before 31 December 2003, and based on the expected price per
share of 10 to 20 times the basic earnings per share as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company as at 31 December 2002, the implied target issue price per new A Share
is in the range of approximately RMB2.25 and approximately RMB4.50. Compared to the three
month average closing price of the Company’s H Shares of approximately HKD1.76 (RMB1.87)
calculated as at the Latest Practicable Date, the implied target issue price per new A Share
represents a premium in the range of approximately 20.3% and approximately 140.6%.

Shareholders should note that the above analyses are based on the terms and structure of the
Proposed A Share Issue currently contemplated by the Company which are only indicative in
nature, and circumstances could develop prior to completion of the Proposed A Share Issue that, if
known at the time we did our analyses, may have altered our analyses.

The Proposed A Share Issue (including the proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian); as stated
in the letter from the board of Directors contained in the Circular, shall be conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the CSRC and is subject to, among other things, the approval and/or
endorsement of the CSRC. The final issue price for the Proposed A Share Issue will, as may be
required under relevant PRC laws and regulations, be subject to be approved by all relevant PRC
regulatory authorities including the CSRC, and be determined in accordance with strict market
principles based on the PRC securities market conditions at the time when the Proposed A Share
Issue takes place. As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, a price range will be
determined through pre-marketing and a “book-building” process will be conducted to determine
an appropriate issue price for the Proposed A Share Issue. The Directors currently expect that the
final issue price for the Proposed A share Issue will not be lower than the three-month average
closing price of the H Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately prior to the
Proposed A Share Issue taking place. The proposed issue of A Shares to China Huadian will be at
the same price as the final issue price to the PRC public for the Proposed A Share Issue. We
consider the aforesaid pricing mechanism for determining the issue price for the proposed issue of
A Shares to China Huadian to be in line with market practice.

Having considered that the Directors currently expect that the final issue price for the Proposed A
Share Issue will not be lower than the three-month average closing price of the H Shares on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately prior to the Proposed A Share Issue taking place, and
that China Huadian has confirmed that it will fully subscribe, at the same price as the issue price
under the Proposed A Share Issue, for all A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal
person shares) to be allocated to it under the Proposed A Share Issue, and has in effect irrevocably
agreed not to dispose of or otherwise deal with such A Shares until such time when the PRC
government releases any new policy regulating the exchange trading of State-owned shares and
legal person shares, and that China Huadian will continue to be the controlling shareholder of the
Company and that the Company and the Directors believe that maintaining such close relationship
with China Huadian is instrumental to the future continuing success of the Company, and all of the
above factors, we are of the opinion that the terms, including the pricing mechanism, of the
proposed issue of A Shares (in the form of unlisted State-owned legal person shares) under the
Proposed A Share Issue to China Huadian are fair and reasonable insofar as the Independent
Shareholders are concerned.
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THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION AND ALL TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED UNDER
THE GUANGAN ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

1.

The Guangan Acquisition Agreement

Pursuant to an announcement dated 9 May, 2003, the Directors announced that the Company
entered into the Guangan Acquisition Agreement with China Huadian for the acquisition from
China Huadian of its 80% equity interest in Guangan for a consideration of RMB475.50
million (approximately HK$448.58 million, subject to adjustment) which (or part thereof) is
currently expected to be funded out of the proceeds of the Proposed A Share Issue.

Under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, the Company has agreed and undertaken to China
Huadian that at any time during the subsistence of the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, when
requested by China Huadian, the Company will assume China Huadian’s guarantee liabilities
(in an aggregate amount not exceeding RMB 1,700 million (excluding interest)) in respect of
two tranches of bank loans borrowed by Guangan before completion of the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement. Such two tranches of bank loans borrowed by Guangan (including
interest accrued thereon, with the aggregate amount of such interest which was as at the
Latest Practicable Date, outstanding being approximately RMB18 million) are currently
repayable by 2007 and 2009, respectively, and collateral-free.

Save as set out above, the Company has made no other guarantee in favour of China Huadian
under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement.

The major terms of and details on the Guangan Acquisition Agreement and all transactions
contemplated under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement are set out in the letter from the
board of Directors contained in the Circular.

Reasons for and benefits of the Proposed Acquisition

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, with the reallocation of the Company’s
controlling shareholding interest to China Huadian (one of China’s five national power group
enterprises) in April, 2003, the Company has reinforced its strategy to become a national
player in power generation, and its expansion strategy will be implemented by means of both
acquisition and building greenfield projects.

The Directors believe the Proposed Acquisition strategically signifies the expansion of the
Company’s business outside of Shandong Province into other provinces in China, and reflects
the support that China Huadian has, since its becoming the Company’s controlling
shareholder, been demonstrating in favour of the Company’s developments.

The Directors also believe the Proposed Acquisition enables the Company to tap the fast
growing Sichuan Province and to grow market share in places other than Shandong Province.
The Directors expect the fast growing electricity demand in Sichuan province combined with
limited capacity expansion in 2004 and 2005 will bring a favorable economic return to
Guangan in the next few years. By acquiring interests in power plants other than those in
Shandong Province, the Directors believe the Company will be able to achieve geographical
diversification that is expected to mitigate the operational risks which may result from
concentrating within a smaller market.
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The Proposed Acquisition includes assets of two 300MW coal-fired power generating units
that has already been put into commercial operation, plus two 300 MW coal-fired power
generating units expected to be put into commercial operation by 2004. The Proposed
Acquisition will immediately increase the generating capacity managed by the Company by
600 MW in 2003 and another 600 MW in 2004. The Directors believe this will enable the
Company to capture the strong growth in electricity demand in Sichuan province experienced
in recent years.

We have discussed with the Directors regarding their bases and assumptions in relation to the
above and we have no reason to believe that such bases and assumptions are not fair and
reasonable.

For further details on the reasons for and benefits of the Proposed Acquisition, please refer to
the letter from the board of Directors contained in the Circular.

Information on Guangan

Guangan is a company established in the PRC which is currently owned as to 80% by China
Huadian and as to the remaining 20% by a third party (which has consented to the Proposed
Acquisition) independent of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of their chief executives,
directors or substantial shareholders or any associates of any of them. Guangan is expected to
become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company following completion of the
Proposed Acquisition.

Guangan is principally engaged in the business of generating electricity, with a total planned
installed capacity of 1,200 MW to be fully completed by 2004.

The Phase I project of Guangan, which comprises two 300MW coal-fired power generating
units, started commercial operation in October, 1999 and February, 2000, respectively. Total
investment, which has been fully paid, deployed in the construction of Guangan’s Phase 1
project amounted to approximately RMB2,731 million.

The Phase II project of Guangan, which comprises two 300MW coal-fired power generating
units, started construction in September, 2002. These two units are expected to be put into
commercial operation by August, 2004 and December, 2004, respectively. As stated in the
letter from board of Directors, total investment to be deployed in the construction of
Guangan’s Phase I project is expected to amount to approximately RMB2,285 million, and
construction will be financed as to 20% by shareholders’ equity (with investment from its
existing shareholders in proportion to their current equity interest in Guangan) and 80% (in
the amount of approximately RMB1,828 million) by bank loans.

As at 31st December, 2002, the net asset value attributable to 80% of the equity interest in
Guangan, determined in accordance with the accounting policies consistent with those
adopted by the Company under International Financial Reporting Standards, was
approximately RMB477.5 million (approximately HK450.47 million).
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The net operating results attributable to 80% of the equity interest in Guangan, determined in
accordance with the accounting policies consistent with those adopted by the Company under
International Financial Reporting Standards, were loss of approximately RMB20.7 million
(approximately HK$19.5 million) and profit of approximately RMB25.8 million
(approximately HK$24.3 million) for the two financial years ended 31st December, 2001 and
2002, respectively.

The results of Guangan improved from a net loss of RMB25.85 million in 2001 to a net profit
of RMB32.28 million in 2002. The increase in Guangan’s profit resulted mainly from a
47.9% increase in revenue from 2001 to 2002, which was mainly attributable to the 47.1%
increase in electricity sold to the Sichuan Power Grid.

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, for the first quarter of 2003, the unaudited
revenue generated by Guangan from selling electricity was approximately RMB266.9 million,
representing an increase of 32.2% compared with that for the same period in 2002, and
Guangan achieved a net profit of RMB59.8 million (unaudited) for the first quarter of 2003,
representing a 130% increase over that for the same period in 2002.

Further details relating to Guangan are set out in the letter from the board of Directors in the
Circular.

Funding of the Proposed Acquisition and Payment Terms

As disclosed in the letter from the board of Directors contained in the Circular, the
consideration (or part thereof but excluding the adjustment thereto in the manner as described
therein the Circular) is currently expected to be funded out of the proceeds of the Proposed A
Share Issue.

According to the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, if the Company’s application in respect of
the Proposed A Share Issue is approved by the CSRC and the Company receives the proceeds
thereof on or before 30th December, 2003, the Company shall pay China Huadian such
consideration in cash in a lump sum on or before 30th December, 2003.

Also as disclosed in the letter from the board of Directors, if, however, the Proposed A Share
Issue is not concluded until after 30th December, 2003, the Company shall pay the
consideration to China Huadian by way of two installments as follows:

a) RMB237.80 million, representing slightly over 50% of the consideration, shall be paid
by the Company to China Huadian in cash by 30th December, 2003 (and which
RMB237.80 million is currently expected to be funded out of the Company’s internal
resources); and

b) RMB237.70 million, representing the balance of the consideration, shall be paid by the

Company in cash within five business days after the Company receives the proceeds of
the Proposed A Share Issue and in any event by 30th June, 2004,
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We note from our discussion with the Directors that completion of the Proposed A Share Issue
is not a condition for the completion of the Proposed Acquisition, and that if the proceeds of
the Proposed A Share Issue are not sufficient for funding the Proposed Acquisition, the
Company expects to use its internal resources for the funding.

As disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December, 2002, the Company
had total cash and cash equivalent resources of approximately RMB1.05 billion, and its long
term and short term debts were approximately RMB9.33 billion, representing a net debt to
equity ratio of approximately 96.9%. The Directors believe the Company will have sufficient
resources for future working capital purposes after the Proposed Acquisition.

Whilst we cannot express any view on whether the Proposed A Share Issue may or may not
proceed within the time frame or the eventual size of any funds which may be raised as a
result thereof, taking into account the target size of the Proposed A Share I[ssue and the
existing internal resources of the Company, we have no reason to believe that the Company
may not be able to fund the Acquisition.

Consideration

The consideration is RMB475.50 million (approximately HK$448.58 million), and represents
approximately 80% of the equity interest in the net asset value of Guangan as at 31
Decemeber, 2002.

Under the Guangan Acquisition Agreement, the consideration shall be adjusted with reference
to 80% of the difference between the audited net asset value of Guangan as at 31st December,
2002 and that as at the date of completion, both to be determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Standards and Regulations. The independent auditors are to be jointly appointed
by the Company and China Huadian. Such adjustment shall, under the Guangan Acquisition
Agreement, be settled between the Company and China Huadian on or before 30th April,
2004.

Shareholders should note that, if the adjustment is positive, the Company is then required to
pay such adjustment to China Huadian, and such adjustment is currently expected to be
funded out of the Company’s internal resources, and that there are certain differences between
the accounting treatment under the PRC Accounting Standards and Regulations and that under
the International Financial Reporting Standards.

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, the consideration of RMB475.50 million
(approximately HK$448.58 million) for the Proposed Acquisition was determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company and China Huadian based on the valuation of the
net assets of Guangan in the amount of RMB594.40 million as at 31st December, 2002 as
assessed by China United Assets Appraisal Co. Ltd. (a State-approved independent PRC
* valuer), and taking into account Guangan’s future development potential (including the
development of its Phase Il project as described in the letter from the board of Directors).
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Also as stated in the letter from the board of Directors, such consideration of RMB475.50
million represents the valuation of the net assets attributable to 80% of the equity interest in
Guangan as at 31st December, 2002. We note that such consideration represents a discount of
0.4% to the net asset value attributable to 80% of the equity interest in Guangan as according
to Guangan’s audited financial statements as at 31 December, 2002 prepared under the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In formulating our opinion, we have considered the current market multiples of various
comparable and listed companies based in the PRC and other Asian countries based on their
respective market price as at the Latest Practicable Date and their latest available full year
financial statements.

As stated earlier and in the letter of the board of Directors, the results of Guangan improved
from a met loss of RMB25.85 million in 2001 to a net profit of RMB32.28 million in 2002,
and for the first quarter of 2003, the unaudited revenue generated by Guangan from selling
electricity was approximately RMB266.9 million, representing an increase of 32.2%
compared with that for the same period in 2002, and Guangan achieved a net profit of
RMB59.8 million (unaudited) for the first quarter of 2003, representing a 130% increase over
that for the same period in 2002. Based on the aforesaid, we note that Guangan has been on a
rapidly increasing trend in terms of sales and profits since 2001 and we consider that
valuation multiples based on historical profitability are not appropriate to value Guangan.

Set out below are certain details of the comparable listed companies that are engaged in the
power generation business.

For the purpose of comparison only, we have considered the following measures:

- the price to book value of equity ratio; and

- the enterprise value per MW ratio.

based on publicly available data as at the Latest Practicable Date and the listed companies’
latest available full year financial statements. For the H share companies and the B share
companies, we have conducted the following analysis based on their respective published
financial statements as at 31 December, 2002 prepared under IFRS or Hong Kong GAAP as

the case may be. For Guangan, we have conducted our analysis based on its financial
statements as at 31 December, 2002 prepared under IFRS and audited by KPMG.
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Country Price/ Book Enterprise
Value of Equity Value/MW
x (000 US$/MW)
PRC H share
Beijing Datang Power Generation Co. Ltd PRC 14 494.5
Huaneng Power Int’1 Inc. PRC 1.7 5102
Shangdong Int’l Power Development Co. Ltd. PRC 1.3 418.2
Average 1.5 4743
PRC B share
Shenzhen Nanshan Power Station Co. Ltd PRC 3.2 679.1
Heilongjiang Electric Power Co. Ltd PRC 1.8 566.2
Zhejiang -Southeast Electric Power Co. Ltd PRC 1.9 707.8
Guangdong Electric Power Development Co. Ltd PRC 1.8 720.4
Average 2.2 668.4
Hong Kong
CLP Holdings Ltd Hong Kong 2.2 N/M
Hong Kong Electric Holdings Ltd Hong Kong 1.8 N/M
Average 2.0 N/M
Other Asian countries
Malakoff Berhad Malaysia 1.6 927.6
YTL Power Int’l Berhad Malaysia 1.5 1,255.3
Manila Electric Company Philippines 0.1 N/M
Electricity Generating Public Co. Ltd Thailand 1.3 585.1
Ratchaburi Electricity Generating
Holding Public Co Ltd Thailand 1.7 512.7
Korea Electric Power Corp. South Korea 0.4 590.3
Average 1.1 774.2
Overall sample average , 1.6 663.9
Guangan multiples implied by the consideration 1.0 516.8

Source: Bloomberg and annual reports of the respective companies

Notes: .

For the purpose of comparison only:

(1) The ratios were calculated on the basis of the companies’ 'respective market capitalisation determined as
according to Bloomberg as at the Latest Practicable Date and the companies’ financial data as at the end of
financial year 2002 as according to Bloomberg and the companies’ respective annual reports.

(2) Price refers to market capitalisation as at the Latest Practicable Date.

(3) Enterprise Value refers to the sum of market capitalisation as at the Latest Practicable Date and net
indebtedness as at the end of financial year 2002.

(4) MW refers to the announced or installed capacity in megawatt of the respective companies.

(5) We have derived the implied valuation multiples of Guangan on the basis of the consideration and the
audited financial statements of the Target Power Plants as at 31 December 2002 prepared in accordance
with IFRS.

(6) The country and regional averages are included for the convenience of the reader only and do not
necessarily represent the actual country and regional averages if other power generation companies are
included.
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(7) N/M means “not meaningful”.
(8) An exchange rate of RMB8.277=US$1.0 has been used.

(9)  An exchange rate of HK$7.799=US§1.0 has been used.
(10) An exchange rate of Malaysian Ringgit3.8=US$1.0 has been used,
(11) An exchange rate of Philippines Peso 53.095=US$1.0 has been used
(12) An exchange rate of Thai Baht41.695=US$1.0 has been used.
(13) An exchange rate of Korean Won1,200.45=US$1.0 has been used.

The valuation represented by the consideration for the Proposed Acquisition results in
multiples which, when compared to the other measures set out in the above table, are within
the ranges of the multiples of the comparable companies. We note that the implied Enterprise
Value per MW ratio based on the valuation represented by the consideration for the Proposed
Acquisition is higher than the average of the implied Enterprise Value per MW ratio in respect
of the listed H share companies set out in the above table. We consider this is nevertheless
reasonable given that the Guangan assets are relatively new, and that the aforesaid implied
Enterprise Value per MW ratio for Guangan includes investment already expensed relating to
the Phase II project but does not include the potential additional capacity in terms of MW that
the Phase II project will contribute. However, because the business, operations and prospects
of Guangan are not completely the same as those of the companies included in the
comparable companies group, the market multiples comparison above should be used with ‘
care.

6. Financial impact of the Proposed Acquisition

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, assuming that the Proposed Acquisition
had taken place and had been completed on 1 January, 2002, the net profit contribution to the
Group would be RMB25.8 million or approximately 2.2% (as compared with the Group’s
audited net profit in the amount of RMB1,181.7 million for the year 2002). We note that, as
stated in the letter from the board of Directors, the Company believes that with the anticipated
growth of the power markets in Sichuan and the commencement of commercial operation of
Guangan’s Phase II project, the Proposed Acquisition will contribute more positively to the
profitability of the Company. We have discussed with the Directors regarding their bases and
assumptions for this statement and have no reason to believe that such bases and assumptions
are not fair and reasonable.

Having considered the above-mentioned principal factors, we are of the opinion that the
transactions contemplated under the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under
the Guangan Acquisition Agreement are fair and reasonable so far as the Independent Shareholders
are concerned.

OPINION

Having considered the above-mentioned principal factors and reasons, we are of the opinion that
the terms of the proposed issue of A Shares by the Company under the Proposed A Share Issue to
China Huadian and the Proposed Acquisition and all transactions contemplated under the Guangan
Acquisition Agreement are fair and reasonable so far as the Independent Shareholders are
concerned and the transactions contemplated thereunder are in the interest of the Company as a
whole.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited
Tim Ferdinand
Managing Director
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PART A

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
TO CATER FOR, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THE PROPOSED CHANGE OF THE
COMPANY’S NAME

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, amendments are proposed to be made to the
Articles of Association to cater for, or otherwise in connection with, the reallocation of controlling
shareholding interest in the Company and the substitution of China Huadian for Shandong Electric
Power (Group) Corporation as the Company’s immediate controlling shareholder in April, 2003
and the proposed change of the Company’s name from “lU KRB EFEHERH AR QT
Shandong International Power Development Company Limited” to “= EE R E WD BER A
A] Huadian Power International Corporation Limited”. Such proposed amendments are set out as
follows:

CHAPTER 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS
Article 2

Article 2 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

- “Registered name of the Company

Chinese: BEEBENRDER DT
(Abbreviation: ¥ B B &)

English:  Huadian Power International Corporation Limited
(Abbreviation: HDPI)”
CHAPTER 2: OBJECTS AND SCOPE OF BUSINESS

Article 10
Article 10 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The business objective of the Company is to be actively engaged in the development,

construction and management of the power projects, implement advanced management

methods and active operational strategies, accelerate the development of electric power

business, enhance power supply, promote profit level of the Company, and enable
shareholders in general to obtain stable and increasing benefits.”
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CHAPTER 3: SHARES AND REGISTERED CAPITAL
Article 16
Article 16 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“Upon the increase of capital by issuing overseas listed foreign invested shares, the
Company’s capital structure comprises: 5,256,084,200 ordinary shares, of which
3,825,056,200 shares are domestic shares, representing 72.774 per cent. of the total of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company. All such domestic shares are held by the Company’s
promoters in such numbers and percentages as set out as follows:

LWREBEREZREBR AR 903,443,970 shares, representing 17.189 per cent.
LWERBREREBAR QAL 86,536,800 shares, representing 1.646 per cent.
EHEMEAERREQAL 20,000,000 shares, representing 0.381 per cent.

Shareholders of the Company’s overseas listed foreign invested shares hold 1,431.028,000
shares, representing 27.226 per cent. of the total of the issued ordinary shares of the
Company.”

PART B

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
TO CATER FOR, AND FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF,
THE PROPOSED A SHARE ISSUE

As stated in the letter from the board of Directors, to cater for, and following completion of, the
Proposed A Share Issue, amendments will, in accordance with laws and regulations prescribed by
the relevant PRC authorities including the CSRC stipulating provisions mandatory or otherwise
recommended for inclusion in articles of associations of PRC listed companies (including the
Guide, the Standards, the Regulatory Opinions and the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions),
be made to the Articles of Association in compliance or otherwise in accordance with all such legal
and regulatory requirements as will then be applicable to the Company. Such proposed
amendments are set out as follows:
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CHAPTER 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS
Article 6

The first paragraph of Article 6 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to read as
follows:

“These Articles of Association were amended pursuant to the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Special Regulations of the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China on Overseas Offering and Listing of Shares by Joint Stock Limited Companies, the
Mandatory Provisions for Articles of Association of Companies to be Listed Overseas (the
*Mandatory Provisions™), the Guide for Articles of Association of Listed Companies (the
“Guide”), the Standards for the Governance of Listed Companies (the “Standards™) and other
related regulations, were passed by a special resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting,
and shall take effect upon approval by the regulatory authority for examination and approval
of companies as authorised by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (the “State
Council”) being obtained.”

Article 7

The first and second paragraphs of Article 7 of the Articles of Association are, in accordance with
article 10 of the Guide regarding claims to be made by the Company against its directors,
supervisors, general manger and senior administrative officers, proposed to be amended to read as
follows:

“The Articles of Association shall be binding on the Company and its shareholders, directors,
supervisors, general manager and other senior administrative officers. These persons may,
pursuant to the Articles, make claims relating to the affairs of the Company.

Provided that the relevant provisions of Chapter 23 hereof are not violated, pursuant to the
Articles, shareholders may make claims against the Company; the Company may, in
accordance with these Articles, make claims against its shareholders, directors, supervisors,
the general manager and other senior administrative officers; shareholders may, in accordance
with these Articles, make claims against other shareholders; and shareholders may, in
accordance with these Articles, make claims against the directors, supervisors, the general
manager and other senior administrative officers of the Company.”

CHAPTER 3: SHARES AND REGISTERED CAPITAL
Article 14

A new paragraph, reading as follows, is, by reference to article 18 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as the fourth paragraph of Article 14 of the Articles of Association:

“The Company’s domestic invested shares shall be centrally deposited with the Shanghai
Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation. The Company’s overseas
listed foreign invested shares shall principally be deposited with Hong Kong Registrars
Limited.”
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Article 15

Article 15 of the Articles of Association is, in accordance with the Guide, proposed to be amended
to read as follows:

“Upon approval by the regulatory authority for examination and approval of companies as
authorised by the State Council, at the time of the Company’s establishment, the promoters
were issued 3,825,056,200 ordinary shares, representing 100 per cent. of the total number of
ordinary shares then issued by the Company.”

Article 16

Following amendments which are proposed to be made to Article 16 of the Articles of Association
in such manner as are described in Part A to this Appendix, Article 16 is, in accordance with article
20 of the Guide, further proposed to be amended to cater for the Company’s shareholding structure
following completion of the Proposed A Share Issue. The further amended Article 16 is proposed
to read as follows: '

“After the establishment of the Company, it issued and over-allotted 1,431,028,000 overseas
listed foreign invested shares upon the adoption of a special resolution at the shareholders’
general meeting and the approval of the regulatory authority for examination and approval of
companies as authorised by the State Council; after completion of the foregoing issue of
overseas listed foreign invested shares, the Company issued [.] domestically listed domestic
invested shares upon the adoption of a special resolution at the shareholders’ general meeting
and the approval of the regulatory authority for examination and approval of companies as
authorised by the State Council.

After the foregoing increase of capital, the capital structure of the Company is as follows: [.]
ordinary shares, of which [.] shares are held by the promoters, representing [.] per cent. of the
total of the issued ordinary shares of the Company; [.] shares are held by holders of non-listed
domestic invested shares, representing [.] per cent. of the total of the issued ordinary shares of
the Company; [.] shares are held by holders of domestically listed domestic invested shares,
representing [.] per cent. of the total of the issued ordinary shares of the Company; and [.]
shares are held by holders of overseas listed foreign invested shares, representing [.] per cent.
of the total of the issued ordinary shares of the Company.

Each of the promoters holds shares as follows:

LEREEBEEEREBR QAL 903,443,970 shares, representing [.] per cent.
LRBREEREEAR LA 86,536,800 shares, representing [.] per cent.
BHETERAERRELAD 20,000,000 shares, representing [.] per cent.”

Articles 17 and 18
The references to “the State Council Securities Commission” in the second paragraph of the

original Article 17 and in the original Article 18 of the Articles of Association are proposed to be
amended to read as “the State Council securities regulatory authorities”. '

—40




APPENDIX I PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Article 19
Article 19 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The registered capital of the Company is RMB[5,256,084,200] yuan (to be adjusted in
consequence after the issuance of A shares). The Company shall register its registered capital
with the State Administration for Industry and Commerce of the People’s Republic of China,
and shall make filings and recordals with the regulatory authority for examination and
approval of companies as authorised by the State Council and with the State Council
securities regulatory authorities.”

Article 20
A new sub-paragraph, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 22 of the Guide, proposed
to be inserted as sub-paragraph (4) of the second paragraph of Article 20 of the Articles of
Association, and the original sub-paragraph (4) is consequentially proposed to be renumbered as
sub-paragraph (5):

“(4) converting the common reserve to increase share capital;”

Article 23

The reference to “Article 38” in the fourth paragraph of Article 23 of the Articles of Association is
proposed to be revised to read as “Article 41”.
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CHAPTER 4: REDUCTION OF CAPITAL AND REPURCHASE OF SHARES
Article 27
A new sub-paragraph, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 25 of the Guide, proposed
to be inserted as sub-paragraph (4) of Article 27 of the Articles of Association as one of the

methods pursuant to which the Company may repurchase its shares:

“(4) other circumstances specified in laws, administrative regulations and approved by the
State Council securities regulatory authorities.”

CHAPTER 6: SHARE CERTIFICATES AND REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS
Article 36

A new Atrticle, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 28 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 36 of the Articles of Association:

“The Company shall not accept use of its share certificates as the subject matter of a pledge.”
Article 37

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 29 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 37 of the Articles of Association:

“The Company’s directors, supervisors, general manager and other senior administrative
officers shall periodically report to the Company during their tenure the number of the
Company’s shares which they hold. They may not transfer the Company’s shares which they
hold during their tenure or within six months after leaving the Company.”
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Article 38

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 30 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 38 of the Articles of Association:

“If a shareholder with more than S per cent. of the voting rights in the Company sells shares
of the Company that it holds within six months after the date on which it purchased the same,
or it repurchases the same within six months after the date of selling the same, the profits it
derived therefrom shall belong to the Company.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph shall also apply to sale and repurchase of the
Company’s shares by senior administrative officers (including without limitation directors,
supervisors, managers and other senior administrative officers) as specified in the articles of
association of the Company’s legal person shareholders with more than 5 per cent. of the
voting rights in the Company.”

As a result of the addition of the above new Articles, the original Articles 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41,
42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47 and 48 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45,
46, 47, 48, 49, 50 and 51, respectively. Other Articles of the Articles of Association are also, as a
result of additions of new Articles and/or rearrangements of certain Articles within the Articles of
Association, proposed to be renumbered in the manner as described below.

CHAPTER 7: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
Article 51
Sub-paragraphs (2) and (4) of the new Article 51 (i.e., the original Article 48) of the Articles of
Association regarding rights of the Company’s shareholders are, in accordance with articles 35(3)

and 35(4) of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read, respectively, as follows:

“(2) to attend or appoint proxies to attend shareholders’ meetings, and to exercise voting
rights in proportion to their shareholdings;”

“(4) to transfer, bestow or pledge the shares they hold in accordance with the requirements as
prescribed in laws, administrative regulations and the Articles;”

The reference to “manager” in sub-paragraph (5)(ii)(B) of Article 51 of the Articles of Association
is proposed to be amended to read as “general manager”.
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A new sub-paragraph, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 4 of the Standards,
proposed to be inserted as sub-paragraph (7) in Article 51 of the Articles of Association, and the
original sub-paragraph (7) is consequentially proposed to be renumbered as sub-paragraph (8):

“(7) if a resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting or board of directors violates laws or
administrative regulations or infringes upon the legitimate rights and interests of the
shareholders, the right to institute a legal action in accordance with the law demanding
that the illegal act or infringement be halted; if a director or the general manager violates
laws, administrative regulations or the Articles in the course of carrying out his duties,
thereby causing damage to the Company, the right to demand that the Company institute
a legal action in accordance with the law demanding compensation.”

Article 54

The original Articles 49, 50 and 51 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 52, 53 and 54,
respectively, and a new paragraph, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 4 of the
Standards, proposed to be inserted as the second paragraph of the new Article 54 (i.e., the original
Article 51) of the Articles of Association:

“For the purposes of this Article, the phrase “acting in concert” means that two or more
persons reach a consensus by agreement (whether orally or in writing) to obtain voting rights
in the Company through any of such persons for the purpose of controlling or solidifying their
control of the Company.”

CHAPTER 8': SHAREHOLDERS’ GENERAL MEETINGS
Article 56

The original Articles 52 and 53 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 55 and 56, respectively,
and sub-paragraph (13) of the new Article 56 (i.e., the original Article 53) of the Articles of
Association regarding duties to be discharged at shareholders’ general meetings of the Company is,
in accordance with article 12 of the Regulatory Opinions, proposed to be amended to read as
follows:

“(13)to consider proposals proposed by the supervisory committee and proposals proposed by .

shareholders holding five per cent. or more of the total number of shares carrying the
right to vote at annual general meetings of the Company;”
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Article 57

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 7 of the Standards, proposed to be
inserted as Article 57 of the Articles of Association:

“Matters which laws, administrative regulations or the Articles require be decided by the
shareholders’ general meeting must be considered by the shareholders’ general meeting so as
to protect the right of the Company’s shareholders to decide such matters. When necessary,
and under reasonable circumstances, the shareholders’ general meeting may authorise the
board of directors to decide, within the scope authorised by the shareholders’ general meeting,
specific matters related to a matter on which a resolution has been made and on which the
shareholders’ general meeting finds it impossible to make an immediate decision.

If the authorisation to be granted to the board of directors by the shareholders’ general
meeting is for a matter requiring an ordinary resolution, such authorisation shall be granted if
passed by more than one-half of the voting rights exercised by the shareholders (including
their proxies) present at the shareholders’ general meeting. If the authorisation is for a matter
requiring a special resolution, such authorisation shall be granted if passed by more than two-
thirds of the voting rights exercised by the shareholders (including their proxies) present at
the shareholders’ general meeting. The substance of the authorisation shall be clear and
specific.”

Article 59

The original Articles 54 and 55 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 58 and 59, respectively,
and sub-paragraph (3) of the third paragraph of the new Article 59 (i.e., the original Article 55)
prescribing the circumstances under which the board of Directors shall within two months
thereafter convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company is, in accordance with article
44 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“(3) where shareholders (alone or jointly) holding ten per cent. or more of the Company’s
issued shares carrying the right to vote (excluding proxy voting rights) make a request in

writing to convene an extraordinary general meeting;”

Two new sub-paragraphs, reading as follows, are proposed to be inserted as sub-paragraphs (5) and
(6), respectively, of the third paragraph of the new Article 59:

“(5) where the prescribed number of independent directors proposes to convene such a
meeting; or

(6) where other circumstances as specified in the Articles occur.”

A new paragraph, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 44 of the Guide, also proposed
to be inserted as the last paragraph of the new Article 59:

“The shareholdings referred to in sub-paragraph (3) of the third paragraph of this Article shall
be calculated as at the date of the delivery of the written request.”
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Article 60

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 4 of the Regulatory Opinions,
proposed to be inserted as Article 60 of the Articles of Association:

“The matters to be discussed and decided by the shareholders’ general meeting shall be
determined in accordance with the requirements as prescribed in the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Articles. The annual general meeting may decide on any
matter specified in the Articles.

An extraordinary general meeting shall not decide matters which are not specified in the
notice.”

Article 61

The original Article 56 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 61. The reference to “and Article
58" in the new Article 61 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be deleted, and the original
Article 58 of the Articles of Association relating to certain procedures for convening shareholders’
meetings, reading as follows, is proposed to be rearranged and inserted as a new paragraph (i.e.,
the second paragraph) in the new Article 61 of the Articles of Association:

“Based on the written replies received by the Company 20 days before a shareholders’ general
meeting, the Company shall calculate the number of voting shares represented by
shareholders who have indicated their intention to attend the meeting. Where the number of
voting shares represented by those shareholders reaches half of the Company’s total number
of such shares, the Company may convene the shareholders’ general meeting. Otherwise, the
Company shall, within five days, inform the shareholders again of the motions to be
considered, the date and the venue of the meeting by way of public announcement. After
making the announcement, the shareholders’ general meeting may be convened.”

Article 62

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 58 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 62 of the Articles of Association:

“Proposals before the shareholders’ general meeting shall be specific motions on the matters

to be discussed at the shareholders’ general meeting. Motions put before the shareholders’

general meeting shall meet the following criteria:

(i) their substance may not conflict with the provisions of laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles, and shall fall within the scope of business of the Company and the
scope of the responsibilities of the shareholders’ general meeting;

(ii) there is a clear subject of discussion and a specific resolution; and

(ii1) they are submitted or delivered to the board of directors in writing.”
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Article 63

The original Article 57 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 63, and is, in accordance with
article 4 of the Regulatory Opinions, proposed to be amended to read as follows to principally
endow the Company’s supervisory committee with the power to submit new motions for
consideration at shareholders’ general meetings:

“Where the Company convenes an annual general meeting, the supervisory committee or
shareholders (alone or jointly) holding 5 per cent. or more of the total number of voting
shares of the Company shall be entitled to submit new motions in writing to the Company.
The Company shall include in the agenda of the meeting all items in the motion that fall
within the scope of duties of a shareholders’ general meeting.”

The original Articles 58 and 59 are proposed to be deleted and inserted as the second paragraph of
the new Article 61, and the second paragraph of the new Article 60, respectively, of the Articles of
Association. '

Article 64

The original Articles 60 and 61 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 64 and 65, respectively,
and the references to “manager” in sub-paragraph (5) of the new Article 64 (i.e., the original
Article 60) are proposed to be amended to read as “‘general manager”.

The original Article 62 of the Articles of Association is proposed to be deleted and rearranged to
become a new Article 213 of the Articles of Association.

The original Articles 63, 64, 65, 66 and 67 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 66, 67, 68,
69 and 70, respectively.

Article 71

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 72 of the Guide regarding approval
of connected transactions at the Company’s shareholders’ general meetings, proposed to be
inserted as Article 71 of the Articles of Association:

“When the shareholders’ general meeting considers connected transactions, the connected
shareholder shall not participate in the vote and the number of voting shares that it represents
shall not be counted as part of the total number of valid votes. The announcement of the
resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting shall fully disclose the votes of the non-
connected shareholders. If, in special circumstances, the connected shareholder cannot avoid
voting, the Company may, subject to the consent of the relevant authority being obtained,
carry out the vote in accordance with the normal procedure and provide a detailed explanation
thereof in the announcement of the resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting.”
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Article 73

The original Articles 68 and 69 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 72 and 73, respectively,
and the new Article 73 (i.e., the original Article 69) is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“Shareholders (including proxies) who vote at the shareholders’ general meeting shall
exercise their voting rights in relation to the amount of voting shares they represent. Each
share carries the right to one vote, except in the case of the cumulative voting system for the
election of directors as specified in Article 101 of the Articles.”

The original Articles 70, 71, 72, 73, 74 of the Articles of Association are proposed to be
renumbered as Articles 74, 75, 76, 77 and 78, respectively.

Article 78

A new sub-paragraph, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as sub-paragraph (5) of the
new Article 78 (i.e., the original Article 74) regarding mattes to be considered and resolved by way
of ordinary resolutions at shareholders’ general meetings of the Company, and the original sub-

paragraph (5) of this Article is consequentially renumbered as sub-paragraph (6):

“(5) the appointment, removal or non-renewal of the services of an accounting firm;”
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Article 80

The original Articles 75 and 76 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 79 and 80, respectively.
The new Article 80 is, in accordance with article 54 of the Guide and article 19 of the Regulatory
Opinions to principally endow the Company’s supervisory committee with the power to convene
extraordinary general meetings of the Company, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The supervisory committee or shareholders requiring to convene an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting shall proceed in accordance with the following procedure:

D

(2)

The supervisory committee or shareholders (alone or jointly) holding 10 per cent. or
more of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be held may, by
signing one or more counterpart written requisition(s) stating the object of the meeting,
require the board of directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting. The board of directors shall as soon as possible after receipt of such written
requisition(s) proceed to so convene the extraordinary general meeting or class meeting
(as the case may be). The shareholdings referred to above shall be calculated as at the
date of the delivery of the written requisition(s).

If the board of directors fails to issue a notice to convene such a meeting within 30 days
after the date of the receipt of the written requisition concerned, the supervisory
committee or the shareholder(s) who tendered the requisition may themselves, within
four months after the board of directors receives the requisition, convene such a meeting
in a manner as nearly as possible as where meetings are to be convened by the board of
directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the supervisory committee or the shareholder(s) who
tendered the requisition in convening and holding the meeting by reason of the failure of the
board of directors to duly convene the meeting shall be borne by the Company and shall be
set off against any sums owed to the directors in default by the Company.”
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Article 81

A new Article, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as Article 81 of the Articles of
Association to regulate matters to be resolved by shareholders by way of written resolutions:

“Provided that the relevant provisions of laws, administrative regulations and the Articles are
not violated, the board of directors may itself decide whether to accept a written motion in
lieu of convening a shareholders’ general meeting. In this case, the board of directors shall
prepare a uniform written draft motion and blank correspondence ballots, and deliver the
same to each shareholder by hand or postage-paid mail. The draft motion and blank
correspondence ballots may also be delivered to the holders of domestic invested shares by
way of an announcement. The shareholders with voting rights shall deliver the
correspondence ballot together with their identification documents to the secretary of the
Company’s board of directors by hand or postage-paid mail within the valid period for the
vote. After attestation by the attorney engaged by the Company or notarisation by a notary
public, if the number of shareholders signing in consent reaches the quorum for a decision on
the matter in question as specified in laws, administrative regulations and the Articles, such
motion shall become a resolution of the shareholders’ general meeting.

The delﬁvery of the draft motion and blank correspondence ballots specified in the preceding
paragraph shall comply with the relevant provisions of Chapter 22 of these Articles.”

Article 83

The original Articles 77 and 78 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 82 and 83, respectively,
and the new Article 83 (i.e., the original Article 78) is, in accordance with article 87 of the
Standards, proposed to be amended to read as follows to provide for the requirement on the part of
the Company to announce resolutions passed at shareholders’ general meetings:

“The chairman of the meeting shall be responsible for deciding whether or not a resolution
has been carried. His decision shall be final and shall be announced at the meeting and
recorded in the minutes book. The Company shall announce resolutions passed at
shareholders’ general meetings in accordance with the applicable laws and the relevant
regulations of the stock exchange(s) on which the Company’s shares are listed and traded.”

CHAPTER 9: SPECIAL PROCEDURES FOR VOTINGS BY CLASS SHAREHOLDERS

Article 88

The original Articles 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88 and 89 are proposed to be renumbered as
Articles 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93 and 94, and the reference to “Articles 85 to 89" in the
new Article 88 (i.e., the original 83) of the Articles of Association is consequentially proposed to
be amended to read as “Articles 90 to 94”.

Article 90

The reference to “Article 84” in the first paragraph, and that to “Article 50” in sub-paragraph (2)

of the second paragraph, of the new Article 90 (i.e., the original Article 85) of the Articles of
Association is proposed to be amended to read as “Article 89” and “Article 537, respectively.
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Article 91

The reference to “Article 85” in the new Article 91 (i.e., the original Article 86) of the Articles of
Association is proposed to be amended to read as “Article 90

Article 94

The reference to “the State Council Securities Commission” in sub-paragraph (2) of the new
Article 94 (i.e., the original Article 89) of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to
read as “the State Council securities regulatory authorities”.

CHAPTER 10: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Article 95
The original Article 90 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 95 of the Articles of Association,
and is, by reference to (among other PRC regulations) the Independent Directors’ Guiding

Opinions, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The Company shall have a board of directors which shall be accountable to the shareholders’
general meeting.

Subject to the satisfaction at all times and from time to time of all applicable and relevant
requirements under relevant listing rules, the board of directors shall comprise 12 directors.
The external directors shall account for one-half or more of the total number of directors and
the independent directors among them shall account for one-third or more of the total number
of directors. Furthermore, at least one of the independent directors shall be an accounting
professional.

The board of directors shall have a chairman of the board and two vice-chairmen.”

Article 96

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 77 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 96 of the Articles of Association:

“Directors shall be natural persons.

Directors are not required to hold shares in the Company.”
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Article 97

The original Article 91 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 97 of the Articles of Association,
and 1s, in accordance with article 4(4) of the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions to provide
for the tenure of independent Directors, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“Directors are elected at shareholders’ general meetings and shall serve a term of 3 years.
Upon expiration of his term and if re-elected, a director may serve consecutive terms.
However, an independent director may not serve more than six years consecutively.”

Article 98

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 28 of the Standards and article
4(1) of the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions to enhance corporate governance regarding
nomination of Directors, proposed to be inserted as Article 98 of the Articles of Association:

“The list of director candidates shall be submitted to the shareholders’ general meeting in the
form of a proposal for a resolution.

The candidates other than those for independent director shall be nominated by the board of
directors, the supervisory committee and shareholders holding (alone or jointly) more than 5
per cent. of the total number of voting shares of the Company and be elected by the
shareholders’ general meeting of the Company.

Independent director candidates shall be nominated by the board of directors, the supervisory
committee and shareholders holding (alone or jointly) more than 1 per cent. of the total
number of voting shares of the Company and be elected by the shareholders’ general meeting
of the Company.”
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Article 99

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to articles 29 and 30 of the Standards and article
4 of the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions to provide for procedures in electing
independent Directors, proposed to be inserted as Article 99 of the Articles of Association:

“Before the election of a new independent director, the following procedures shall have been
carried out:

(1

2)

3

4

&)

The party nominating the independent director candidate shall have obtained the
nominee’s consent prior to the nomination, be fully aware of Such particulars of the
nominee as his occupation, academic background, professional title, detailed work
experience, all of the positions he holds concurrently, etc. and be responsible for
providing to the Company written materials pertaining to such particulars. The
candidate shall undertake to the Company in writing that he agrees to accept the
nomination and that the disclosed information on him is true and complete; he shall also
warrant to conscientiously perform his responsibilities as a director once elected.

The party nominating an independent director shall issue an opinion on the nominee’s
qualifications to serve as an independent director and his independence; the nominee
shall, if required under applicable laws and regulations and/or relevant listing rules and
in accordance with such requirements, issue a public statement to the effect that no
relationship exists between him and the Company which could prejudice his making
independent and objective judgments.

If the nomination of an independent director occurs prior to the convening of a meeting
of the board of directors, the written materials pertaining to the particulars of the
nominee described in sub-paragraph (1) and (2) of this Article shall, if required under
applicable laws and regulations and/or relevant listing rules and in accordance with such
requirements, be announced together with the resolution of the board of directors.

If shareholders holding (alone or jointly) more than 5 per cent. of the total number of
voting shares of the Company or the supervisory committee submits an extempore
motion at the annual general meeting of the Company to elect an independent director,
the intent to nominate a director candidate, the written notice of the nominee expressing
his willingness to accept the nomination and the written materials pertaining to the
particulars of the nominee and the undertakings described in sub-paragraphs (1) and (2)
of this Article shall be despatched to the Company seven days before the convening of
the annual general meeting.

Before a shareholders’ general meeting is convened to elect an independent director, the
Company shall, if required under applicable laws and regulations and/or relevant listing
rules and in accordance with such requirements, submit the relevant materials on all the
nominees simultaneously to the State Council securities regulatory authorities, the
agency of the State Council securities regulatory authorities of the place where the
Company is located and (if required) the stock exchange(s) on which the Company’s
shares are listed and traded. If the Company’s board of directors disputes the particulars
pertaining to the nominee, the written opinion of the board of directors shall also be
submitted. If the State Council securities regulatory authorities objects to a nominee,
such person may not be an independent director candidate. At the time a shareholders’
general meeting is convened to elect an independent director, the Company’s board of
directors shall state whether the State Council securities regulatory authorities object to
the independent director candidate.”
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Article 100

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to articles 29 and 30 of the Standards to provide
for and strength procedures for electing Directors other than independent Directors, proposed to be
inserted as Article 100 of the Articles of Association:

“Before the election of a new non-independent director, the following procedures shall have
been carried out:

(D

2

(3)

The party nominating a non-independent director candidate shall have obtained the
nominee’s consent prior to the nomination, be fully aware of such particulars of the
nominee as his occupation, academic background, professional title, detailed work
experience, all of the positions he holds concurrently, etc. and shall be responsible for
providing to the Company written materials pertaining to such particulars. The
candidate shall undertake to the Company in writing that he agrees to accept the
nomination and that the disclosed information on him is true and complete; he shall also
warrant to conscientiously perform his responsibilities as a director once elected.

If the nomination of a non-independent director occurs prior to the convening of the
board of directors, the written materials pertaining to the particulars of the nominee
described in sub-paragraph (1) of this Article shall, if required under applicable laws and
regulations and/or relevant listing rules and in accordance with such requirements, be
announced together with the resolution of the board of directors.

If shareholders holding (dlone or jointly) more than 5 per cent. of the total number of
voting shares of the Company or the supervisory committee submits an extempore
motion at the annual general meeting of the Company to elect a non-independent
director, the intent to nominate a director candidate, the written notice of the nominee
expressing his willingness to accept the nomination and the written materials pertaining
to the particulars of the nominee and the undertakings described in sub-paragraph (1) of
this Article shall be despatched to the Company seven days before the convening of the
annual general meeting.”

Article 101

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 31 of the Standards to provide for
a system of cumulative voting on election of Directors, is proposed to be inserted as Article 101 of
the Articles of Association:

“If the controlling interest of the Company’s controlling shareholder reaches more than 30 per
cent., when the shareholders’ general meeting votes on a motion to elect a director,
cumulative voting shall be used: i.e. when more than two directors are being elected at a
shareholders’ general meeting, each of the shares held by the shareholders participating in the
vote shall carry voting rights equal in number to the number of director candidates; a
shareholder may cast all of his votes for one candidate or may split his votes and cast them
for more than one candidate.”
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Article 102

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 85 of the Guide and article 4(5) of
the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinion, proposed to be inserted as Article 102 of the Articles
of Association:

“Subject to the stipulations of relevant laws and administrative regulations, the shareholders’
general meeting may remove any director (including executive directors) prior to the
expiration of such director’s term through an ordinary resolution, but without prejudice to any
claim for damages under any contract.

If a director fails to attend meetings in person or by proxy twice in succession, he shall be
deemed incapable of performing his responsibilities and the board of directors shall propose
to the shareholders’ general meeting that he be replaced.

If an independent director fails to attend meetings in person three times in succession, the
board of directors shall make a submission to the shareholders’ general meeting that he be
replaced. In the absence of the foregoing circumstance or the circumstances specified in the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China under which a person may not serve as a
director, an independent director may not be dismissed before the expiration of his term of
office without just cause. If an independent director is dismissed prior to the expiration of his
term of office, the Company shall treat such dismissal as a special matter requiring disclosure
and disclose the same. If the independent director so dismissed holds that the grounds for his
dismissal by the Company are unjustified, he may make a public statement to that effect.”

Article 103

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with articles 86 and 87 of the Guide and article
4(6) of the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions, proposed to be inserted as Article 103 of the
Articles of Association:

“A director may submit his resignation before his term of office expires. When a director
intends to resign, he shall submit a written letter of resignation to the board of directors. If an
independent director intends to resign, he shall additionally explain in his letter of resignation
any circumstance relating to his resignation or any circumstance which he considers
necessary to be brought to the attention of the Company’s shareholders or creditors.

If the resignation of a director means that the number of directors does not reach the quorum,
such director’s letter of resignation shall become effective only after his successor has filled
the vacancy resulting from his resignation. The remaining directors shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting of shareholders as soon as possible to elect a director to fill the
vacancy resulting from the director’s resignation. The functions and powers of the director
who submitted his resignation and those of the remaining directors shall be subject to
reasonable restrictions until the shareholders’ general meeting has passed a resolution electing
a replacement.

If the resignation of an independent director causes the percentage of independent directors
on the Company’s board of directors to fall below the minimum required. by the relevant
regulatory authority, such independent director’s letter of resignation shall become effective
after his successor has filled the vacancy.”
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Article 104

The original Article 92 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 104 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 94 of the Guide to strength and enhance the functions and
powers of the board of Directors, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The board of directors shall be accountable to the shareholders’ general meeting, and shall
exercise the following functions and powers:

(1)

(2)
3
4
)

(6)

)

8

)

to be responsible for convening shareholders’ general meetings and to report on its work
to the shareholders’ general meeting;

to implement resolutions passed at shareholders’ general meeting;
to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment proposals;
to formulate the Company’s annual financial budget and final accounts;

to formulate the Company’s profit distribution proposals and proposals for making up
losses;

to formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the registered capital of the
Company, and for the issuance of Company debentures or other securities and the listing

thereof;

to draft proposals for major acquisitions by the Company, the buyback of the Company’s
shares or the merger, division or dissolution of the Company;

to decide on venture investments, asset mortgages and other matters related to the
provision of security by the Company within the scope authorised by the shareholders’

general meeting;

to decide on the establishment of the Company’s internal management organization;
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(10) to appoint or remove the Company’s general manager and secretary of the board of
directors, and to appoint or remove such senior administrative officers as the deputy
general managers, financial officer(s), etc. based on the recommendations of the general
manager, and to decide on their remuneration, bonuses and punishment;

(11) to formulate the Company’s basic management system;
(12) to formulate proposals for any amendment of the Articles of Association;
(13) to manage information disclosures by the Company;

(14) to make submissions to shareholders’ general meeting on the appointment and
replacement of the accounting firm which audits the Company;

(15) to listen to the general manager’s work reports and examine the work of the general
manager; and

(16) to fulfill any other responsibilities as prescribed in laws, administrative regulations or
the Articles of Association or as otherwise authorised by the shareholders in general
meetings.

Except in relation to the matters set out in sub-paragraphs (6), (7) and (12) of this Article
which require the affirmative vote of more than two-thirds of the directors, resolutions on any
other matters may be approved by the affirmative vote of more than half of the directors.”

Article 105

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 48 of the Standards to enhance the
power to be endowed by the board of directors on its chairman when the board is not in session,
proposed to be inserted as Article 105 of the Articles of Association:

“Upon authorisation by the board of directors, the chairman of the board may exercise some
of the functions and powers of the board of directors while the board is not in session. The
substance of the authorisation by the board of directors shall be clear and specific.”
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Article 106

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to (among other PRC regulations) article 5 of
the Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions to provide for special functions and powers of the
independent Directors, proposed to be inserted as Article 106 of the Articles of Association:

“In addition to the functions and powers bestowed on directors by the Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, other relevant laws and administrative regulations and the
Articles of Association, independent directors shall have the following special functions and
powers:

)

2
3)

)
&)
(6)

(7

Major connected transactions (determined in accordance with the standards issued from
time to time by the competent regulatory authority) which, in accordance with relevant
listing rules, require consideration by the board of directors or shareholders’ general
meeting shall, if required under applicable laws and regulations and/or relevant listing
rules and in accordance with such requirements, be submitted to the board of directors
for discussion after approval by the independent directors. Resolutions of the board of
directors on the Company’s connected transactions shall take effect only if signed by the
independent directors. Before rendering a determination, the independent directors may
appoint an intermediary organization to issue an independent financial advisor’s report to
serve as a basis for their determination.

To propose to the board of directors the appointment or removal of the accounting firm.

Two, or more than one half, of the independent directors may propose to the board of
directors the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders.

To propose the convening of a meeting of the board of directors.
To independently appoint an external audit or consulting firm.

To openly canvass for voting rights from shareholders before the convening of a
shareholders general meeting.

To report circumstances directly to the shareholders’ general meeting, the State Council
securities regulatory authorities and other relevant authorities.

To exercise their functions and powers under this Article other than those specified in sub-
paragraphs (1) and (3) above, the independent directors must obtain the consent of more than
one-half of all the independent directors.

If any of the proposals described above is rejected or if the foregoing functions and powers
cannot be exercised normally, the Company shall, if required under applicable laws and
regulations and/or relevant listing rules and in accordance with such requirements, disclose
the details thereof.
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Article 108

The original Article 93 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 107 of the Articles of Association,
and a new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to article 97 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 108 of the Articles of Association:

“Unless otherwise provided for or regulated under relevant listing rules, the board of directors
shall have power to decide on venture investment projects worth not more than 25 per cent. of
the Company’s net assets. For major investment projects exceeding the examination and
approval authority of the board of directors, it shall, if required under applicable laws and
regulations and/or relevant listing rules and in accordance with such requirements, arrange for
relevant experts and professionals to evaluate the same and report the findings to the
shareholders’ general meeting for approval.”

Article 109

The third paragraph of the original Article 91, reading as follows, is proposed to be rearranged and
inserted as a new Article, Article 109, of the Articles of Association:

“The chairman and the vice chairmen of the board shall be elected or dismissed by a simple
majority vote of all the directors. The chairman and the vice chairmen of the board shall
serve terms of three years, and may serve consecutive terms if re-elected.”
Article 110
The original Article 94 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 110 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 99 of the Guide to enhance the functions and power of the
chairman of the board of Directors, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The chairman of the board shall exercise the following functions and powers:

(1) to preside at shareholders’ general meetings and to convene and preside at meetings of
the board of directors;

(2) to examine the implementation of resolutions of the board of directors;
(3) to sign securities issued by the Company;

(4) to sign the important documents of the board of directors as well as other documents
requiring signature by the legal representative of the Company;

(5) to exercise the functions and powers of the legal representative;
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(6) in emergencies such as after the occurrence of a major natural disaster or other such
event of force majeure, to exercise, in respect of the Company’s affairs, special powers
of disposal in compliance with laws and in the interest of the Company and reporting to
the Company’s board of directors and shareholders’ general meeting after the event; and

(7) to exercise other functions and powers conferred by the board of directors.

Where the chairman of the board is unable to exercise his functions and powers, he may
instruct a vice-chairman to exercise such functions and powers on his behalf.”

Article 111
The original Article 95 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 111 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 102 of the Guide to (among other things) set out the
circumstances under which the chairman of the board of Directors shall convene extraordinary
board meetings, proposed to be amended to read as follows:
“Meetings of the board of directors shall be convened at least four times every year. Such
meetings shall be convened by the chairman of the board by giving notice to all the directors

not less than ten days before the meeting is held.

The chairman of the board shall convene an extraordinary meeting of the board of directors
within seven working days if:

(1) he believes it necessary;

(2) more than one-third of the directors jointly propose such a meeting;

(3) more than one-half of the independent directors. jointly propose such a meeting;

(4) the supervisory covmmittee proposes such a meeting; or

(5) the general manager proposes such a meeting.

The notices of meetinés and extraordinary meetings of the board of directors shall be served
by facsimile transmission, express mail, registered airmail or hand delivery to each of the
directors.

In case a director has attended the meeting of directors and before or at attending the meeting

the director does not represent that he has not received the notice, it shall be deemed that a
notice for the meeting has been delivered to this director.”
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Article 112

The original Article 96 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
and the period within which the secretary of the board of Directors shall notify the Directors of the
time, location and agenda of any board meeting to be convened and prescribed in this Article is, in
accordance with article 101 of the Guide, proposed to be extended from seven days to ten days
before the meeting is proposed to be held. The new Article 112 will then read as follows:

“If the board of directors has stipulated beforehand the time and location of its regular
meetings, no notification is required for convening such meeting. If the board has not
stipulated the time and location of a board meeting beforchand, the chairman or the relevant
persons who propose the meeting shall send a written notice containing the proposal and the
agenda of the meeting to the secretary of the board of directors. The secretary of the board of
directors shall, after receipt of the said notice, notify the directors of the time, location and
agenda of the meeting ten days before the date when the board meeting is proposed to be
held. Any of the directors may waive the right to receive notification of a board meeting
whether prior to or after the issuance of the notice. The secretary of the board of directors
shall send a copy of the above-mentioned notice to the chairman of the supervisory
committee.”

The original Articles 97 and 98 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 113 and 114,
respectively.

Article 115

A new Article, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as Article 115 of the Articles of
Association to provide for procedures regulating the use of written board resolutions:

“The board of directors may accept written motions in lieu of convening a meeting of the
board, provided that such motion is delivered to each director by hand, post, telegram or
facsimile. If the number of directors signing in consent reaches the quorum required to make
a decision on the matter in question as specified in laws, administrative regulations and the
Articles and such consent is delivered to the secretary of the board of directors by one of the
aforementioned methods, unless otherwise provided for or regulated under applicable laws
and regulations and/or relevant listing rules, such motion shall become a resolution of the
board of directors and shall not require the convening of a separate meeting of the board of
directors.”

63—




APPENDIX 1 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Article 116

The original Article 99 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 116 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 109 of the Guide relating to recording of comments made by
any Director at board meetings, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The board of directors shall keep minutes of its decisions on the matters under consideration.
Directors attending the meeting and the person taking minutes shall sign their names on the
minutes of that meeting. Directors who attended the meeting shall have the right to request
that an explanation of their comments made at the meeting be noted in the minutes.”

Article 117

A new Article, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as Article 117 of the Articles of
Association: '

“Any written resolution not passed in accordance with the statutory procedure and not signed
by the directors shall not have the legal effect of a resolution of the board of directors, even if
each director has expressed his opinion by different means.

Where a resolution of the board of directors is in violation of laws, administrative regulations
or the Articles, those directors who voted in favour shall be directly liable. A director who is
shown to have voted against the resolution and whose opposition at the time of the vote is
recorded in the minutes of the meeting may be exempted from liability. A director who
abstained at the time of the vote or who was not present at the meeting and failed to appoint a
proxy shall not be exempted from liability. A director who expressly raised objections during
discussions but did not expressly vote against the resolution likewise shall not be exempted
from liability.”
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CHAPTER 11: SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Article 119

The original Articles 100 and 101 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 118 and 119,
respectively, of the Articles of Association, and the new Article 119 (i.e., the original Article 101)
is, by reference to (among other PRC regulations) article 115 of the Guide to enhance the functions
and responsibilities of the secretary of the board of Directors, proposed to be amended to read as
follows:

“The secretary of the board of directors shall be a natural person who has the requisite
professional knowledge and experience. He shall be appointed by the board of directors. His
main responsibilities are:

(1) to assist directors in handling the routine work of the board of directors;

(2) to be responsible for and ensure the completeness of the Company’s organisational
papers and records;

(3) to ensure that the requisite reports and documentation are prepared and submitted to the
competent authorities in accordance with laws;

(4) to be responsible for the Company’s information disclosures, and to ensure that such
information disclosures are timely, accurate, lawful, true and complete;

(5) to be responsible for and ensure the proper maintenance of the Company’s register of
shareholders and ensure that persons entitled to any records and documents of the

Company are furnished with such records and documents without delay; and

(6) other responsibilities as specified in laws, administrative regulations, the Articles and the
listing rules of the stock exchange(s) on which the Company’s shares are listed.
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Article 120

The original Article 102 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 120 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with the relevant PRC regulations providing for responsibilities of
secretary of board of Directors of PRC companies listed overseas, proposed to be amended to read
as follows to stipulate that the Company’s general manager and financial controller, in addition to
any accountant of the accounting firm appointed by the Company, shall not concurrently serve as
the secretary of the board of Directors:

“Any director or other senior officer of the Company (with the exception of the general
manager and financial controller) may also be appointed secretary of the board of directors.
No accountant of the accounting firm appointed by the Company shall serve concurrently as
the secretary of the board of directors. -

Where the secretary is also a director and an act is required to be done by a director and a
secretary separately, a person who is both the secretary and a director may not perform the act
in both capacities.”

CHAPTER 12: GENERAL MANAGER OF THE COMPANY
Article 121

The original Article 103 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 121 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 118 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“The Company shall have a general manager who shall be responsible for the day to day
business operations and administrative management of the Company. The Company shall
also have several deputy general managers who shall assist the general manager. The general
manager and deputy general managers shall be appointed or removed by the board of
directors.

A director may be appointed to serve concurrently as general manager, deputy general
manager or other senior administrative officer. However, the number of directors
concurrently serving as general manager, deputy general manager and other senior
administrative officer may not exceed half of the total number of the Company’s directors.

The general manager and the deputy general managers shall serve terms of three years, and
may serve consecutive terms if re-appointed.”
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Article 122

The original Article 104 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 122 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 121 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows
to strength the functions and powers of the Company’s general manager:

“The Company’s general manager shall be accountable to the board of directors and shall
exercise the following functions and powers:

)

2

3

4
(3)
(6)
)

(8)

to be in charge of production, operation and management of the Company, and to
organize the implementation of the resolutions of the board of directors;

to draft the Company’s development plans, annual production and business plans, annual
financial budget and final accounts, proposal on after-tax distribution of profits and

proposal on making up losses;

to organize the implementation of the Company’s annual business plans and investment
proposals;

to draft the plan for establishment of the Company’s internal management organization;
to draft the Company’s basic management system;
to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the Company;

to request the appointment or dismissal of the Company’s deputy general managers and
the financial controller;

to appoint or dismiss management personnel other than those to be appointed or
dismissed by the board of directors;
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(9) to determine the wages, benefits, bonuses and punishment and to decide on the
employment and dismissal of the Company’s employees;

(10) to propose the convening of extraordinary meetings of the board of directors;
(11) to handle major external business on behalf of the Company; and

(12) to perform other functions and powers conferred by the Articles and the board of
directors.”

Article 123

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 123 of the Guide to provide for
and enhance the responsibilities of the Company’s general manager, proposed to be inserted as
Article 123 of the Articles of Association:

“The general manager of the Company shall report the Company’s execution and performance
of major contracts, use of funds and profit and loss situation to the board of directors or at the
request of the supervisory committee. The general manager must be responsible for and
ensure the truthfulness of such reports.”

Article 124

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 124 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 124 of the Articles of Association:

“In deciding on issues involving such immediate interests of the Company’s employees as
their wages and benefits, safe production and labour, labour insurance, dismissal, etc., the
general manager shall first seek the opinions of the employees.”

The original Articles 105 and 106 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 125 and 126,
respectively, of the Articles of Association, and all references to “manager” or “managers” therein
are proposed to be amended to read as “general manager” or, as the case may be, “general
managers’’.
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CHAPTER 13: SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Article 128

The original Articles 107 and 108 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 127 and 128,
respectively, of the Articles of Association, and the new Article 128 (i.e., the original Article 108)
is, in accordance with (among other PRC regulations) article 129 of the Guide, proposed to be
amended to read as follows to provide for the composition of the Company’s supervisory
committee:

“The supervisory committee shall comprise three members, including two shareholders’
representatives and one employee representative (the employee representatives shall account
for more than one-third of the members of the supervisory committee). External supervisors
shall account for more than one-half of the members of the supervisory committee.

The term of a supervisor shall be three years. A supervisor may serve consecutive terms if re-
Y y
elected.”

Article 129

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 67 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 129 of the Articles of Association 1o primarily provide for the methods pursuant
to which shareholders’ representative supervisor candidates shall be nominated:

“The list of shareholders’ representative candidates shall be submitted to the shareholders’
general meeting in the form of a proposal for a resolution. Shareholders’ representative
candidates shall be nominated by the board of directors, the supervisory committee or
shareholders holding (alone or jointly) more than 5 per cent. of the total number of voting
shares of the Company, and shall be elected and dismissed by the shareholders’ general
meeting of the Company.

Employee representatives shall be democratically elected and removed by the Company’s
employees.”

Article 130

The original Article 109 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 130 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 130 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows
to prohibit the secretary of the board of Directors, in addition to the Directors, the Company’s
general manager and its financial controller, from serving as a supervisor of the Company:

“The Company’s directors, the general manager, financial controller and the secretary of the
board of directors shall not serve concurrently as supervisors.”
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Article 131

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 132 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 131 of the Articles of Association to provide for the circumstances under which
the Company’s supervisors shall be replaced:

“If a supervisor fails to attend meetings of the supervisory committee in person twice in
succession, he shall be deemed incapable of performing his responsibilities and the
shareholders’ general meeting or the employees’ congress shall replace him.”

Article 132

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 133 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 132 of the Articles of Association to provide for regulations regarding
resignation of the Company’s supervisors:

“A supervisor may submit his resignation before the expiration of his term of office. The
provisions of Chapter 10 of the Articles concerning the resignation of directors shall apply to
supervisors.”

Article 134

The original Articles 110 and 111 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 133 and 134,
respectively, of the Articles of Association, and the new Article 134 (i.e., the original Article 111)
is, in accordance with article 138 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows to
provide for the service of notice of meetings of the supervisory committee:

“Meetings of the supervisory committee shall be held at least once a year. They shall be
convened by the chairman of the supervisory committee,

Notices of the meetings of the supervisory committee shall be delivered in writing to all
supervisors ten days before the date on which the meeting is proposed to be held.”
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Article 135

The original Article 112 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 135 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with (among other PRC regulations) article 136 of the Guide, proposed to
be amended to read as follows to strength the functions and powers of the Company’s supervisory
committee:

“The supervisory committee shall be accountable to the shareholders in general meetings and
shall exercise the following functions and powers according to laws:

(1)

2

)

4

(5)
()
(7)
8

)

to examine the Company’s financial affairs and, when necessary, to separately appoint,
in the name of the Company, an accounting firm to independently examine the
Company’s finances;

to supervise the Company’s directors, general manager, and other senior administrative
officers to see whether they act in violation any laws, administrative regulations or the

Articles when performing their duties;

if an act of a Company’s director, the general manager, or other senior administrative
officer is harmful to the Company’s interest, to require him to correct such an act;

to review and verify accounting reports, business reports, profit distribution proposals
and other financial information proposed to be tabled at shareholders’ general meeting
and, if in doubt, to, in the name of the Company, appoint any registered accountant or
practising auditor to assist in reviewing them such reports, proposals and information;

to submit extempore motions at annual general meetings of shareholders;

to propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders;

to propose to convene extraordinary meetings of the board of directors;

to represent the Company in negotiations with its directors or in initiating legal
proceedings against any director of the Company; and

to perform other matters as authorised by laws, administrative regulations or the Articles,
or as authorised by the shareholders in general meetings.

Supervisors may attend meetings of the board of directors.”
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Article 136

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 67 of the Standards to perfect the
functions to be discharged by the Company’s supervisory committee, proposed to be inserted as
Article 136 of the Articles of Association:

“The supervisory committee may require the Company’s directors, general manager, deputy
general managers, financial controller, secretary of the board of directors, internal auditors or
external auditors to attend meetings of the supervisory committee to answer questions on
issues of concern to the supervisory committee.”

Article 137

The original Article 113 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 137 of the Articles of Association,
which is proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“Decisions of the supervisory committee shall be made by the affirmative vote of more than
two-thirds (including two-thirds) of the Company’s supervisors.”

Article 138

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 142 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 138 of the Articles of Association to perfect recording of minutes of meetings of
the Company’s supervisory committee:

“The supervisory committee shall produce minutes in respect of the decisions made at
meetings of the supervisory committee. Supervisors attending the meeting and the recorder
shall sign the minutes of the meeting. Any supervisor shall have the right to request that an
explanation of his comments made at the meeting be noted in the minutes. The minutes of
meetings of the supervisory committee shall be duly preserved as important files and records
of the Company.”

The original Articles 114 and 115 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 139 and 140,
respectively, of the Articles of Association.
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CHAPTER 14: QUALIFICATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, GENERAL MANAGER AND
OTHER SENIOR ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Article 141

The original Article 116 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 141 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with articles 78, 119 and 130 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read
as follows to stipulate further categories of persons who shall be prohibited from serving as the
Company’s directors, supervisors, general manager or any other senior administrative officers:

“None of the following persons may serve as a director, supervisor, the general manager or
any other senior administrative officer of the Company:

(1) a person without capacity for civil conduct or with limited capacity for civil conduct;

(2) a person who was punished for the crime of corruption, bribery, expropriation or
misappropriation of property or disrupting the social and economic order, and a period of
five years has not elapsed since the punishment was completed, or who was deprived of
his political rights as punishment for a criminal offence, and, again, a period of five
years has not elapsed since the deprivation was completed,

(3) aperson, who was a director, factory chief or manager of a company or enterprise which
entered into insolvent liquidation due to mismanagement, and was personally liable for
that insolvent liquidation and a period of three years, counting from the date of
completion of the liquidation proceedings in question, has not elapsed;

(4) a person, who was the legal representative of a company or enterprise which has had its
business licence revoked for violating the law, and was personally liable for that
revocation and a period of three years, counting from the date of revocation of the
business licence in question, has not elapsed;

(5) a person with comparatively large individual debts that have fallen due but have not been
settled;

(6) a person who has been placed on file for investigation by judicial organs for having
violated the criminal law, and such investigation has not been concluded;

(7) a State official,

(8) a person who is prohibited from acting as a leader of an enterprise by virtue of any laws
and administrative regulations;

(9) anon-natural person;

(10) a person who was convicted by any relevant regulatory authorities of violation of
securities-related laws and regulations, where such violation involved acts of a
fraudulent or dishonest nature and a period of five years, counting from the date of the
conviction in question, has not elapsed; and

(11) a person who has been prohibited from entering the market by the State Council

securities regulatory authorities, and whose prohibition has yet to be lifted.”
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Article 142

A new Article, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as Article 142 of the Articles of
Association to regulate, and thereby minimise, the overlap of the senior management of the
Company and that of its controlling shareholder, and hence promote independence of the
Company:

“No more than two persons from among the chairman of the board, vice chairmen of the
board and directors of the Company’s controlling shareholder may concurrently serve as the
chairman of the board, vice chairmen of the board and directors of the Company. The
management personnel of the Company’s controlling shareholder may not concurrently serve
as the general manager, deputy general managers, financial controller, marketing manager or
secretary of the board of directors of the Company.”

Article 143

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 2 of the Independent Directors’
Guiding Opinions to provide for qualifications of the Company’s independent Directors, proposed
to be inserted as Article 143 of the Articles of Association:

“A person serving as an independent director shall meet the following basic criteria:

(1) he is qualified to serve as a director of the Company in accordance with laws,
administrative regulations and other relevant regulations;

(2) he has the independence required by relevant laws, administrative regulations and
departmental rules;

(3) he has a basic knowledge of the operation of listed companies and is familiar with
relevant laws, administrative regulations and rules; ‘

(4) he has more than five years of work experience in law, economics or other work
experience required to perform the responsibilities of an independent director; and

(5) he meets other criteria specified in the Articles.”
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Article 144

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to and in accordance with article 3 of the
Independent Directors’ Guiding Opinions to set out the criteria for determining the independence
of an independent Director, proposed to be inserted as Article 144 of the Articles of Association:

“An independent director must (in such manner as may from time to time be provided for, and
in compliance with, under all relevant listing rules) be independent. In addition, the
following persons may not serve as independent directors:

(1) persons serving with the Company or subsidiaries of the Company, their immediate
family members or persons with whom they have a major social relationship (the term
“immediate family members” means spouse, parents, children, etc.; the term “major
social relationship” means siblings, parents-in-law, children-in-law, spouses of siblings,
siblings of spouse, etc.);

(2) natural person shareholders who directly or indirectly hold more than one per cent. of the
issued shares of the Company or who are one of the top ten shareholders in the
Company, and their immediate family members;

(3) persons holding a position in either an entity investor that directly or indirectly holds
more than five per cent. of the Company’s issued shares or any of the top five
shareholders in the Company, and their immediate family members;

(4) any person who has been characterized as falling within the ambit of any of the
circumstances specified in the preceding three sub-paragraphs in the most recent one
year;

(5) any person who provides financial, legal, consulting or other such services to the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company; and

(6) any person whom the State Council securities regulatory authorities has specified cannot
serve as an independent director.”

The original Article 117 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 145 of the Articles of Association,
and the reference therein to the “manager” is proposed to be amended to read as the “general
manager’’.

Article 146

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 82 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 146 of the Articles of Association to regulate actions undertaken by the
Directors on behalf of the Company or its board of Directors:

“Without the authorisation specified in the Articles or lawfully granted by the board of
directors, a director may not act on the behalf of the Company or the board of directors in his
own name. When a director acts in his own name and a third party could reasonably believe
that he is acting on behalf of the Company or the board of directors, he shall first declare his
position and status.”
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Article 147

The original Articles 118, 119, 120 and 121 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 147, 148,
149 and 150, respectively, of the Articles of Association, and all references therein to the
“manager” are proposed to be amended to read as the “general manager”.

Article 151

The original Article 122 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 151 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 88 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows:

“When a director, supervisor, the general manager or other senior administrative officer of the
Company submits his resignation or when his tenure expires, his fiduciary duties towards the
Company and shareholders are not automatically terminated prior to the taking effect of his
resignation or within a reasonable period of time after the taking effect thereof or within a
reasonable period of time after the expiry of his tenure. His duty of confidence in relation to
the Company’s trade secrets survives the expiry of his tenure until such secrets become
information in the public domain. Other duties may continue for such period as fairness may
require depending on the time lapses between the termination or expiry and the act concerned
and the circumstances and conditions under which the relevant relationship with the Company
terminates or expires.”

Article 152

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 89 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 152 of the Articles of Association:

“A director, supervisor, the general manager or other senior administrative officer of the
Company who leaves the Company without authorisation before expiration of his tenure,
thereby causing the Company to incur a loss, shall be liable, and keep the Company
indemnified, for compensation.”

The original Articles 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128, 129 and 130 are proposed to be renumbered as
Articles 153, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 159 and 160, respectively, of the Articles of Association,
any reference therein to the “manager” is proposed to be amended to read as the “general
manager”, and the reference to “Article 50” in the new Article 153 (i.e., the original Article 123)
and that to “Article 127” in the new Article 159 (i.e., the original Article 129) are proposed to be
amended to read as “Article 53” and “Article 1577, respectively.
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Article 161

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to article 39 of the Standards, proposed to be
inserted as Article 161 of the Articles of Association:

“Subject to the approval of the shareholders’ general meeting and under circumstances
permitted by applicable laws and regulations, the Company may purchase liability insurance
for its directors, supervisors, the general manager and other senior administrative officers,
except for liabilities arising from the violation of laws, administrative regulations or the
Articles by such persons.”

The original Articles 131, 132 and 133 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 162, 163 and
164, respectively, of the Articles of Association, all references in the new Article 162 (i.e., the
original Article 131) to the “manager” are proposed to be amended to read as the “general
manager”, and the reference in the new Article 164 (i.e., the original Article 133) to “Article 517 is
proposed to be amended to read as “Article 54”.

CHAPTER 15: FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS, PROFIT DISTRIBUTION
AND AUDITING

Article 166

The original Articles 134 and 135 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 165 and 166,

respectively, of the Articles of Association, and the new Article 166 (i.e., the original Article 135)
is proposed to be amended to read as follows: '

“The Company shall prepare financial reports at the end of each financial year. Such reports
shall be examined, reviewed and verified according to laws.”

Article 171

The original Articles 136, 137, 138, 139 and 140 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 167,
168, 169, 170 and 171, respectively, of the Articles of Association, and the new Article 171 (i.e.,
the original Article 140) of the Articles of Association is proposed to be amended to read as
follows:

“Subject to the satisfaction at all times and from time to time of all applicable and relevant
requirements under relevant listing rules, the Company shall, within every financial year.
issue four financial reports: i.e., the first quarterly report shall be issued within 30 days after
the expiry of the first three months’ period of the financial year, the interim report shall be
issued within 60 days after the expiry of the first six months’ period of the financial year, the
third quarterly report shall be issued within 30 days after the expiry of the first nine months’
period of the financial year, and the annual report shall be issued within 120 days after the
end of the financial year.”
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Article 172
A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 145 of the Guide to set out the
contents of the Company’s annual and interim reports, proposed to be inserted as Article 172 of the
Articles of Association:
“Subject to the satisfaction at all times and from time to time of all applicable and relevant
requirements under relevant listing rules, the Company’s annual report and the interim
financial report for any mid-year profit distribution shall include the following:
(1) a balance sheet;
(2) a profit statement;
(3) a profit distribution statement;
(4) a cash flow statement; and

(5) notes to the financial statements.

If the Company does not make a mid-year profit distribution, the interim report shall include
the financial statements and notes except for the item mentioned in sub-paragraph (3) above.”

Article 174

The original Article 141 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 173 of the Articles of Association,
and a new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 148 of the Guide to specify the
priority in the application of the Company’s after-tax profits, proposed to be inserted as Article 174

of the Articles of Association:

“After the Company has paid its various taxes in accordance with tax laws and regulations, its
after-tax profits shall be distributed in the following order of priority:

(1) making up losses for the previous year;

(2) allocating 10 per cent. of such profits to the statutory common reserve;

(3) allocating between 5 and 10 per cent. of such profits to the statutory provident fund;

(4) allocating to the discretionary common reserve; and

(5) paying dividends to shareholders.

Once the aggregate amount of the Company’s statutory common reserve reaches more than 50
per cent. of the Company’s registered capital, no further allocations need be made to such
reserve. The shareholders’ general meeting shall decide whether to make an allocation to the
discretionary common reserve after the allocations to the statutory common reserve and
provident fund have been made. The Company shall not distribute profits to its shareholders

before making up the Company’s losses and making the allocations to the statutory common
reserve and provident fund.”
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Article 176

The original Article 142 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 175 of the Articles of Association,
and a new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 149 of the Guide to regulate
conversion of common reserve into the Company’s share capital, proposed to be inserted as Article
176 of the Articles of Association:

“When the shareholders’ general meeting of the Company resolves to convert the common
reserve into share capital, the new shares shall be allotted in proportion to the shareholders’
existing shareholdings. However, when the statutory common reserve is converted into share
capital, not less than an amount equivalent to 25 per cent. of the Company’s then registered
capital shall be retained in such retained common reserve.”

Article 177

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 150 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 177 of the Articles of Association:

“After the shareholders have, at any general meeting of the Company, passed a resolution on
the profit distribution proposal, the board of directors of the Company must complete the
distribution of the dividends (or shares) within two months after the date of the relevant
general meeting.”

The original Articles 143, 144, 145 and 146 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 178, 179,
180 and 181, respectively, of the Articles of Association.

Article 182

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 152 of the Guide to enhance the
Company’s internal audit and control, proposed to be inserted as Article 182 of the Articles of
Association:

“The Company shall implement an internal audit system and appoint full time auditors to
carry out internal auditing and supervision of the Company’s financial receipts, payments and
economic activities.”

Article 183

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 153 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 183 of the Articles of Association:

“The Company’s internal audit system and the responsibilities of the auditing personnel shall

be implemented after approval by the board of directors. The auditor-in-chief shall be
accountable and report to the board of directors.”
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CHAPTER 16: APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
Article 184

The original Article 147 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 184 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with articles 154 and 155 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as
follows for greater clarity:

“The Company shall appoint an independent accounting firm which complies with the
relevant requirements of the PRC to audit the Company’s annual accounts, review other
financial reports of the Company, carry out net asset verifications and provide other related
consulting services.

The appointment of an accounting firm shall be decided by the shareholders in general
meetings.”

Article 185

The original Article 148 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 185 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 154 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows
for greater clarity:

“The term of office of an accounting firm appointed by the Company shall be one year
commencing from the conclusion of the annual general meeting and expire at the conclusion
of the mext annual general meeting of the Company. At the expiration of its term of
appointment, it may be reappointed.”

The original Articles 149, 150 and 151 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 186, 187 and

188, respectively, of the Articles of Association, and the reference in the new Article 186 (i.e., the
original Article 149) to the “manager” is proposed to be amended to read as the “general manager”.
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Article 189

The original Article 152 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 189 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 158 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows
for greater clarity:

“The remuneration of an accounting firm or the method of determining such remuneration
shall be determined by the shareholders in general meetings or in such manner as the
shareholders in general meetings may determine. In the case of an accounting firm appointed
by the board of directors to fill a vacancy, the remuneration of the accounting firm may be
determined by the directors and shall be submitted to the shareholders in general meetings for
approval.”

Article 190

The original Article 153 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 190 of the Articles of Association,
which is, by reference to article 159 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows for
greater clarity:

“Decisions to appoint, remove or not to renew the services of an accounting firm shall be
made by the shareholders in general meetings and shall, if required under applicable laws and
regulations and/or relevant listing rules and in accordance with such requirements, be
disclosed in the relevant newspapers. When necessary, the reason for the change shall be
stated. Furthermore, any such decision shall be filed with the State Council securities
regulatory authorities and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.”
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Article 191

The original Article 154 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 191 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with article 160 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to read as follows
for greater clarity:

“Should the Company decide to remove or not to renew the services of an accounting firm, it
shall give ten days’ prior notice to that accounting firm. The accounting firm shall have the
right to present its views at the shareholders’ general meeting. If the accounting firm
considers that the grounds on which the Company decided to remove it or not renew its
services are unjustified, it may file a complaint with the State Council securities regulatory
authorities and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Where an accounting
firm resigns, it shall be under an obligation to inform the shareholders’ general meeting as to
whether or not there is any impropriety in the Company.”

The original Articles 155 and 156 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 192 and 193,
respectively, of the Articles of Association.

CHAPTER 17: MERGER AND DIVISION OF THE COMPANY
Article 194
The original Article 157 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 194 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with articles 169, 170 and 173 of the Guide, proposed to be amended to
read as follows to enhance the procedure, and thereby strength protection afforded to shareholders,

in respect of the Company’s merger and division:

“The Company may be merged or divided in accordance with the law. The merger or division
of the Company shall be handled in accordance with the following procedure:

(1) the board of directors shall draft the plan for the merger or division;

(2) the shareholders’ general meeting shall pass a resolution thereon in accordance with the
Articles;

(3) the relevant parties shall enter into a contract for the merger or division;
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(4) the relevant examination and approval procedures shall be carried out in accordance with
the law;

(5) the various merger or division matters such as the disposal of claims and debts, etc. shall
be carried out;

(6) registration of dissolution or registration of the change shall be carried out.

In the event the Company is merged or divided, the board of directors of the Company shall
take necessary measures to safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of those shareholders
who oppose the merger or division.

Shareholders who oppose the proposal shall have the right to require the Company or
shareholders who are in favour of such proposal to.purchase their shares at a fair price.

The resolution approving the merger or division shall be compiled into a special document for
inspection by shareholders. Copies of the document referred to above shall also be delivered
by prepaid post to holders of overseas listed foreign invested shares to their address registered
on the register of shareholders.”

The original Articles 158, 159, 160, 161, 162 and 163 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles
195, 196, 197, 198, 199 and 200, respectively, of the Articles of Association.

CHAPTER 20: DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION OF THE COMPANY
Article 201

The original Article 164 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 201 of the Articles of Association,
and a new paragraph, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 177(2) of the Guide,
proposed to be inserted as the second paragraph of this Article to supplement the liquidation
procedures in connection with the Company’s dissolution resulting from any merger or division of
the Company:

“If the Company is dissolved pursuant to paragraph (2) of the preceding Article, the
liquidation shall be handled in accordance with the contract entered into by the relevant

parties at the time of the merger or division.”

The original Articles 165, 166 and 167 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 202, 203 and
204, respectively, of the Articles of Association.
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Article 205

The original Article 168 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 205 of the Articles of Association,
the second paragraph of which is, in accordance with article 183 of the Guide, proposed to be
amended to'read as follows to set out the priority in the application of the Company’s property
upon liquidation:

“The Company’s property upon liquidation shall be applied in the order of priority set forth
below in accordance with applicable laws and regulations:

(1) payment of the liquidation expenses;

(2) payment of the wages and labour insurance premiums of the Company’s employees;
(3) payment of taxes owed;

(4) discharge of the Company’s debts; and

(5) distribution to shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.”

The original Articles 169, 170 and 171 are proposed to be renumbered as Articles 206, 207 and
208, respectively, of the Articles of Association.

CHAPTER 21: PROCEDURES FOR AMENDING THE ARTICLES
Article 209

A new Article, reading as follows, is, in accordance with article 187 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 209 of the Articles of Association:

“The Company shall amend the Articles if:

(1) after amendment of the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China or related laws
or administrative regulations, the Articles conflict with the provisions of the amended
laws or administrative regulations;

(2) achange occurs to the Company resulting in an inconsistency with the Articles; or

(3) the Company’s shareholders in general meetings decide to amend the Articles.”
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Article 210

The original Article 172 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 210 of the Articles of Association,
which is, in accordance with articles 189 and 190 and the Guide, proposed to be amended to read
as follows:

“Amendments made to the Articles concerning matters prescribed by the Mandatory
Provisions shall take effect upon approval by the examination and approval authority
appointed by the State Council. Where the amendments relate to registered particulars of the
Company, those particulars shall be amended according to laws.

If the amendments to the Articles contain information which laws and administrative
regulations require be disclosed, such amendments shall be announced in accordance with
regulations.”

- CHAPTER 22: NOTICES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

A new Chapter 22 entitled “Notices and Announcements”, comprising the following four new
Articles (i.e., Articles 211 to 214) is proposed to be inserted into the Articles of Association.

Article 211

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to articles 161 and 162 of the Guide, proposed
to be inserted as Article 211 of the Articles of Association:

“Unless otherwise provided for or regulated under relevant listing rules, notices of the
Company shall be given by one of the methods set forth below:

(1) by hand;

(2) by malil;

(3) by way of announcement; or

(4) by other method specified in the Articles.

If a Company notice is given in the form of an announcement, it shall be deemed received by
all relevant persons upon publication of the announcement.

Unless otherwise specified herein and unless otherwise provided for or regulated under
relevant listing rules, notices, information or written statements sent to holders of overseas
listed foreign invested shares must be delivered by hand or postage-paid letter to the
registered address of each holder of overseas listed foreign invested shares.”
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Article 212

A new Article, reading as follows, is, by reference to article 166 of the Guide, proposed to be
inserted as Article 212 of the Articles of Association:

“If a Company notice is given by hand and the recipient signs (or seals) the acknowledgment
of receipt, the date on which the recipient signs (or seals) for receipt shall be deemed the date
of service.

If a Company notice is given by way of an announcement, the date of first publication of the
announcement shall be deemed the date of service.

If a notice is to be delivered by mail, the address must be written clearly, postage prepaid and
the notice placed in an envelope. Such notice shall, unless otherwise provided for or
regulated under applicable laws and regulations and/or relevant listing rules, be deemed
served on the fifth working day upon the envelope containing such notice is consigned to the
post office.”

Article 213

A new Article, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as Article 213 of the Articles of
Association:

“The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a
meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate the meeting and the
resolutions adopted at the meeting.”

Article 214

A new Article, reading as follows, is proposed to be inserted as Article 214 of the Articles of
Association:

“Unless otherwise provided, any notice or report required or permitted to be given by the
Company by public announcement under the Articles must be published in at least one
newspaper with national circulation approved by the State Council securities regulatory
authorities and in other Chinese newspapers specified by the board of directors, and must
simultaneously be published on the same day in the Chinese and English languages,
respectively, in one major Chinese and one major English newspaper in Hong Kong.”

CHAPTER 23: RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

The original Chapter 22 is proposed to be renumbered as Chapter 23 of the Articles of Association,
also entitled “Resolution of Disputes”.

The original Article 173 is proposed to be renumbered as Article 215 of the Articles of Association,

and all references therein to the “manager” are proposed to be amended to read as the “general
manager”.
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CHAPTER 24: MISCELLANEOUS

The original Chapter 23 is proposed to be renumbered as Chapter 24 of the Articles of Association,
also entitled “Miscellaneous”.

The original Article 174 is proposed to be deleted, and the original Articles 175, 176 and 177 are

proposed to be renumbered as Articles 216, 217 and 218, respectively, of the Articles of
Association.
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The following is the text of the letter, summary of valuation and valuation certificate dated 30th
May, 2003 from American Appraisal China Limited, an independent property valuer, in connection
with their valuation of the property interest of Guangan in the PRC as at 31st March, 2003
prepared for the purposes of incorporation into this circular:

FHEBFELITHE IS

» . . KE &R ISH1506-10%
Rm 1506-10, {5/F

A Amencan Appralsal Dah Sing rlr:linanciall Centre
lnternational Vatuwation Consultancy 108 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

B Tel: (852) 2511 5200
BE Fax: (852) 2511 9626
www.american-appraisal.com.hk

PRC Offices:
Hong Kong * Beijing * Shanghai + Shenzhen

30th May, 2003

The Directors

Shandong International Power Development
Company Limited

No 14 Jingsan Road, Jinan

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Dear Sirs,

In accordance with the instructions by Shandong International Power Development Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter together referred to as the “Group”) to
value the property interests of Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), we confirm that we have carried out inspection, made
relevant enquiries and obtained such further information as we consider necessary for the purpose
of providing you with our opinion of the value of such property interests as at 31st March, 2003
. (the “Valuation Date”).

BASIS OF VALUATION

Our valuation of the property is our opinion of open market value which we would define as

intended to mean “the best price at which the sale of an interest in a property might reasonably be

expected to have been completed unconditionally for cash consideration on the date of valuation

assuming:

i)  a willing seller;

il) that, prior to the date of valuation, there had been a reasonable period (having regard to the
nature of the property and the state of the market) for the proper marketing of the interest, for
the agreement of price and terms and for the completion of the sale;

iii) that the state of the market, level of values and other circumstances were, on any earlier
assumed date of exchange of contracts, the same as on the valuation date;

iv) that no account is taken of any additional bid by a purchaser with a special interest; and

v) that both parties to the transaction had acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion.”
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VALUATION METHODOLOGY

Before arriving at our opinion of value, we personally inspected the property interests and studied
the market conditions. To develop our opinion of value, we have considered the three generally
accepted approaches to value: the cost approach, the market approach and the income
capitalization approach. The theory of these approaches is outlined as follows:

The Cost Approach

The cost approach establishes value based on the cost of reproducing or replacing the
property interests, less depreciation from physical deterioration, and functional and economic/
external obsolescence, if present and measurable.

Cost of Reproduction New is defined as the estimated amount required to reproduce the
Property interests at one time in like kind and materials in accordance with current market
prices for materials, labour, and manufactured equipment, contractors’ overhead and profit,
and fees, but without provision for overtime, bonuses for labour, or premiums for materials or
equipment.

Cost of Replacement New is defined as the estimated amount required to replace the property
interests at one time with a modern new unit using the most current technology and
construction materials that will duplicate the production capacity and utility of an existing
unit at current market prices for materials, labour, and manufactured equipment, contractors’
overhead and profit, and fees, but without provision for overtime, bonuses for labour, or
premiums for material or equipment.

Physical Deterioration is the loss in value resulting from wear and tear in operation and
exposure to the elements.

Functional Obsolescence is the loss in value caused by conditions within the Equipment such
as changes in design, materials, or process that result in inadequacy, overcapacity, lack of
utility, or excess operating costs.

Economic/External Obsolescence is an incurable loss in value caused by unfavorable
conditions external to the Property interests such as the local economy, economics of the
industry, availability of financing, encroachment of objectionable enterprises, loss of material
and labour sources, lack of efficient transportation, shifting of business centers, passage of
new legislation, and changes in ordinances.

The cost approach generally provides a meaningful indication of value of land improvements,
special buildings, special structures, and special machinery and equipment associated with a
viable business or justified by economic demand.

When market transactions of comparable property interests are not ‘available, when data
cannot be extrapolated from larger transactions, or when transactions are non-existent, under
premise of continued use, assuming adequate earnings the cost approach is the preferred
valuation procedure.
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The Market Approach

In the market approach, the value of the appraised property interests are estimated through
analysis of recent sales of comparable items of the Property interests. It is employed in the
valuation of the property interests for which there is a known used market. Under the premise
of continued use assuming adequate earnings, consideration is given to the cost to acquire
similar items in the second hand market; an allowance then is made to reflect the costs for
freight and installation, if applicable.

A variant of the direct market approach is the use of market relationship. Recent market
prices for property interests in property interests classification are determined with respect to
age and are compared with a benchmark price, such as the cost of reproduction new. The
ratio is then applied to similar property interests in the classification when the secondary
market for the subject property interests is too sparse to exhibit appropriate comparables.

The Income Capitalization Approach

In the income capitalization approach, value is developed on the basis of capitalization of the
net earnings that would be generated if a specific stream of income can be attributed to the
property interests or a group of property interests. This approach is most applicable to
investment and general-use properties where there is an established and identifiable rental
market:

In any appraisal study, all three approaches to value must be considered, as one or more may be
applicable to the subject property. In some situations, elements of two or three approaches may be
combined to reach a value conclusion.

For Property Nos.1 and 2, which are stated in the valuation certificate, we have adopted the
Depreciated Replacement Cost approach during the course of our valuation. Our valuations are
based on the depreciated replacement cost of the buildings and structures (referred to as the
“Buildings™) which is defined as the gross replacement cost of the Buildings, from which
appropriate deductions may then be made to allow for age, condition, economic/external and
functional obsolescence and environmental factors etc. All of these might result in the existing
Buildings being worth less to the undertaking in occupation than would a new replacement. As the
land underlying the Buildings of the properties was obtained by the way of administrative
allocation which cannot be transferred, leased, or mortgaged freely by Sichuan Guangan Power
Generation Company Limited without the approval by the relevant government bodies and the
payment of land premium to the government, we have attributed no commercial value for those
parcels of land.

For Property No.3 which is stated in the valuation certificate, we have valued the property interests
on an open market basis with the benefit of vacant possession by reference to comparable market
transactions and, where appropriate, on the basis of capitalization of the net income receivable
with due allowance for reversionary income potential.
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ASSUMPTIONS

For Property Nos.1 and 2, which are stated in the valuation certificate, as the land on which the
Buildings are erected is held under long term leases, we have assumed that the Company has free
and uninterrupted rights to use the Buildings for the whole of the unexpired terms of their
respective land leases.

For Property No.3 which is stated in the valuation certificate, our valuations have been made on
the assumption that the owner sell the property interests on the open market without the benefit of
any deferred term contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management agreements or any similar
arrangements which could serve to increase the value of such property interests. In addition, no
forced sale situation in any manner is assumed in our valuations.

For Property No.3 which is stated in the valuation certificate, we have assumed that the owner of
the property interests has free and uninterrupted rights to use, lease, sell or mortgage the property
interests for the whole of the unexpired term of its respective land use rights. Unless stated as
otherwise, vacant possession is assumed for the property interests concerned.

No allowance has been made in our valuations for any charges, mortgages or amounts owing on
any of the property interests valued nor for any expenses or taxation which may be incurred in
effecting a sale. Unless otherwise stated, it is assumed that all the property interests are free from
encumbrances, restrictions and outgoings of an onerous nature, which could affect their rental
values.

We have assumed that all consents, approvals and licenses from relevant government authorities
for the buildings and structures erected or to be erected thereon have been granted. Also, we have
assumed that unless otherwise stated, all buildings and structures erected on the site are held by the
owner or permitted to be occupied by the owner.

It is assumed that all applicable zoning, land use regulations and other restrictions have been
complied with unless a non-conformity has been stated, defined and considered in the valuation
certificate. Further, it is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements is within the
boundaries of the property interests described and that no encroachment or trespass exists unless
noted in the valuation certificate.

TITLESHIP INVESTIGATION

We have been provided with extracts of documents in relation to the title of the property interests
situated in the PRC. However, we have not scrutinized the original documents to verify ownership
or to verify any amendments which may not appear on the copies handed to us. We have relied to a
considerable extent on the information provided by the Group.

All legal documents disclosed in this letter and valuation certificate are for reference only and no
responsibility is assumed for any legal matters concerning the legal title to the property interests
set out in this letter and valuation certificate.

We have relied upon the legal opinion (refer as the “PRC legal opinion”) as stated in the property

title report dated 28th May, 2003 given by Haiwen & Partners in relation to the legal title to the
property interests in the PRC.
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LIMITING CONDITIONS

We have relied to a considerable extent on the information provided by the Group and have
accepted advice given to us by the Group on such matters as statutory notices, easements, tenure,
occupancy, site and floor areas and all other relevant matters. Dimensions and areas included in the
valuation certificate are based on information contained in the documents provided to us and are
only approximations.

We have no reason to doubt the truth and accuracy of the information as provided to us by the
Group. We were also advised by the Group that no material facts have been omitted from the
information so supplied. We consider we have been provided with sufficient information to reach
an informed view.

We have inspected the exterior and, where possible, the interior of the property interests included
in the attached valuation certificate. However, no structural survey has been made and we are
therefore unable to report as to whether the property interests are or are not free of rot, infestation
or any other structural defects. No tests were carried out on any of the services. In the course of
our inspection, we did not notice any serious defects.

We have not carried out investigations on site to determine the suitability of ground conditions and
services for the proposed development, nor have we undertaken archaeological, ecological or
environmental surveys. Our valuation is prepared on the assumption that these aspects are
satisfactory and that no extraordinary expenses or delays will be incurred during construction
period.

REMARKS

We enclose herewith the summary of valuation and the valuation certificate.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of
AMERICAN APPRAISAL CHINA LIMITED

Leo C. Ho
BSc., MBA, MTP, MRICS, AHKIS
Vice President

Note: Leo C. Ho, who is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor and Registered Professional Surveyor, has over 12 years of
experience in valuation of properties in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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SUMMARY OF VALUATION

Open Market Value
in existing state as at
Property 31st March, 2003

1. Buildings and Structures of
Sichuan Guangan Power Plant RMBg30,000,000
Daishi Town
Guangan City
Sichuan Province
PRC
RMB23,000,000
2. Residential Development Complex in Leimin Street
Guangan City
Sichuan Province
PRC
' RMB3,000,000
3. Ten Apartment Units and a Car Parking Space in
Block 2-2
No. 18 Wang Fu Jie
Jin Jiang District
Chengdu City
Sichuan Province
PRC

Total RMB856,000,000
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VALUATION CERTIFICATE
Property Description Particulars of Capital value in existing
Occupancy state as at
31st March, 2003
1. Sichuan The property comprises different phases of ~ Phase I of the RMB830,000,000
Guangan development known as Phase I, Phase I  property is occupied
Power Plant Desulfurization System and Phase II by Sichuan Guangan

Daishi Town
Guangan City
Sichuan
Province
PRC

Expansion. The total site area of the power
plant is approximately 1,799,311 square
meters.

Phase I development consists of certain
buildings and structures of a coal-fired
power plant with an installed capacity 2 x
300 MW generating units in operation and
a planned capacity of 2 x 300 MW
generating units, known as Phase Il
Expansion.

Phase I

The total gross floor area of Phase I
development is approximately 100,677
square meters. The major buildings and
structures include the main power house,
central control room, LV and HV switch
yards, transformer areas, switch rooms, water
treatment plant rooms, offices, warehouses,
workshops, a chimney, cooling towers, pump
stations, ash fields, cable tunnels, pits and
tanks,

Construction of Phase I began in 1997, two
generating units were completed in
October 1999 and February 2000
respectively. As at the date of valuation,
the two 300 MW power generating units
were in operation.

The buildings and structures were
completed in or about 2000.

Phase I - Desulfurization System

The construction of Phase I desulfurization
system was commenced in December 2002.
The system is expected to be completed in
the mid of 2004.

Phase II - Expansion

The construction of new power plant was
commenced in October 2002. The two 300
MW power generating units are expected
to be completed by the end of 2004.
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Notes:

1.  Pursuant to fifteen State-owned Land Use Rights Certificates dated 16th January 2002 and 28th January 2002
respectively, the land use rights of the subject fifteen continuous pieces of land with a total site area of
approximately 1,799,311 square meters located in Daishi town are held by Sichuan Guangan Power Generation
Company Limited through administrative allocation by Sichuan Land and Resources Bureau. The details of the
land use rights certificates are as follows: -

Certificate Number Land area (sq.m.) Purpose of Use Term
JI B A (2002)F £ 002673 62,013.30 Industrial Unspecified
NI B B (2002)F & 002695 9,832.40 Pipe work Unspecified
NI B A (2002)F % 01096%% 1,483.48 Industrial Unspecified
JIE A (2002)F £ 010975 19,849.70 Industrial Unspecified
B B (2002)F % 0109857 17,272.20 Industrial Unspecified
JII B B (2002)F % 01099% 588,660.00 Industrial Unspecified
JI B A (2002)F £ 011005% 14,507.48 Road works Unspecified
M B B (2002)F % 0110158 198,666.87 Railways Unspecified
B B (2002)F % 01102% 7,812.70 Road works Unspecified
JII B B (2002)F % 011038 36,605.10 Industrial Unspecified
JII B B (2002)F % 011045 58,082.00 Industrial Unspecified
JI B B (2002)F % 011055 154,952.26 Railways Unspecified
JI B A (2002)F % 01106% 804.00 Industrial Unspecified
Jil B A (2002)F £ 011075 5,675.80 Industrial Unspecified
JII B A (2002)F £ 011085} 556,766.40 Industrial Unspecified

2. Pursuant to the Business License Registration No.5116001800005 dated 10th January, 2002 issued by Sichuan
Province Guangan Industry and Commence Administrative Bureau, Sichuan Guangan Power Generation
Company Limited has a registered capital of RMB700,000,000.

3. According to the PRC legal opinion, PTEEEEE LT and W/ EHE 75 2 &) are entitled to 80%
and 20% of equity shares of Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited (hereinafter referred as the
“Power Plant”) respectively.

4. As advised by the management of the Power Plant, the estimated total construction cost of buildings and
structures in respect of Phase I Desulfurization System is approximately RMB23,970,000 of which, as at 31st
March, 2003, RMB421,460 has been paid. In the course of our valuation, we have taken into account the said
construction cost.

3. As advised by the management of the Power Plant, the estimated total construction cost of buildings and
structures Phase II Expansion is approximately RMB379,490,000 of which, as at 31st March, 2003,
RMB55,853,079 has been paid. In the course of our valuation, we have taken into account the said construction
cost.

6.  As advised by the management of the Power Plant, the land improvement cost for the subject property is
approximately RMB134,000,000. In the course of our valuation, as the land was obtained by the way of
administrative allocation which cannot be transferred, leased, or mortgaged freely by the Power Plant (Sichuan
Guangan Power Generation Company Limited) without the approval by the retevant government bodies and the
payment of land premium to the government, we have attributed no commercial value for those parcels of land.

7. The PRC legal opinion states, inter alias, that:

1. Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited was properly established with the rights to operate
power generation business.

ii.  Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited has lawfully obtained the land use rights of the
subject property.
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iii.

iv.

TEEESEEALR and OJIIEFE R E 2 7] are entitled to 80% and 20% of equity shares of
Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited respectively.

Phase I Development of the subject property was approved by the relevant authorities and the
corresponding Real Estate Ownership Certificate can be obtained without any legal encumbrance.

The construction works of Phase I Desulfurization System and Phase II Expansion were approved by the
relevant authorities.
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Property

2. Residential
Development
Complex in
Leimin Street
Guangan City
Sichuan
Province
PRC

Notes:

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description

The property comprises a comprehensive
residential development complex
including several apartment buildings,
canteen, playground, landscaped garden
and ancillary structures.

The property occupied a site area of
approximately 39,213.18 square meters
with the total gross floor area of about
10,232 square meters and was completed
in or about 1998.

Particulars of
Occupancy

Capital value in
existing state as at
31st March, 2003
The property is RMB23,000,000
occupied by

Sichuan Guangan

Power Generation

Company Limited

as staff quarters.

1. Pursuant to the State-owned Land Use Right Certificate dated 22nd February, 2000, the subject piece of land
located in Leimin Street Guangan City with a site area of 39,213.18 square meters is held by Sichuan Guangan
Power Generation Company Limited through administrative allocation by Land Administrative Bureau of

Guangan City.

2. As advised by the management of the Power Plant, the land improvement cost is approximately RMB7,000,000.
In the course of our valuation, as the land is obtained by the way of administrative allocation which cannot be
transferred, leased, or mortgaged freely by Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited without the
approval by the relevant government bodies and the payment of land premium to the government, we have
attributed no commercial value for those parcels of land.

3. The PRC legal opinion states, inter alias, that:

i Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited has lawfully obtained the land use rights of the
subject property.

ii.  The development of the subject property was approved by the relevant authorities and the corresponding
Real Estate Ownership Certificate can be obtained without any legal encumbrance.




APPENDIX II PROPERTY VALUATION
VALUATION CERTIFICATE
Property Description Particulars of Capital value in
Occupancy existing state as at
31st March, 2003
3. Ten The property comprises ten apartments The property is RMB3,000,000
Apartment units and a car parking space within a  occupied by
Units and a multi-story residential building completed  Sichuan Guangan
Car Parking in 1990’s. Power Generation
Space in Company Limited
Block 2-2 The total gross floor areas of the ten  as staff quarters.
No. 18 Wang  apartments units and car parking space are
Fu Jie approximately 1,229.79 square meters and
Jin Jiang 39.07 square meters respectively.
District
Chengdu City
Sichuan
Province
PRC
Notes:

1.

Pursuant to eleven Building Ownership Certificates dated 24th November 2000 issued by Chengdu City Real
Estate Administrative Bureau, the subject ten apartment units with a total gross floor area of approximately
1,227.79 square meters and a car parking space with a gross floor area of approximately 39.07 square meters are

held by Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited.

The PRC legal opinion states, inter alias, that:

i. Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited has lawfully obtained the Building Ownership
Certificates of the subject property.

ii.  Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited has the rights to sell, lease or charge the subject
property subject to obtaining the corresponding strata title Stated-owned Land Use Rights Certificate.
Sichuan Guangan Power Generation Company Limited is ready to apply the corresponding strata title Land
Use Rights Certificate and can be obtained without any legal encumbrance.




APPENDIX III GENERAL INFORMATION

1.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Group. The Directors collectively and individually
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and
confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no other facts not contained in this circular, the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

(b)

Directors and the Company’s supervisors

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors, chief executive officer or
supervisors of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short position which any such Director,
chief executive or supervisor is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which was required to be entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Substantial shareholders

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the following
persons, not being a Director, chief executive or supervisor of the Company, had an
interest in the Company’s shares which falls to be disclosed to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
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Shares held / Approximate shareholding percentage

Name of Short
shareholder Interest position
Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of Approximate

shareholding shareholding percentage of

in the Company’s  in the Company's shareholding

Number of total issued total issued in the total

Shares shares held share capital ~ domestic shares issued H Shares

China Huadian Domestic 2,815,075,430 53.56% 73.60% - —
shares ’

Shandong International Trust and
Investment Company Limited Domestic 903,443,970 17.19% 23.62% — —
shares

HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note} H Shares 1,408,470,000 26.80% — 98.42% -

Note: Based on the information available to the Directors as at the Latest Practicable Date and so far as the Directors
are aware, among the 1,408,470,000 H Shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited, J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. had
an interest in 122,998,000 H Shares (representing approximately 8.60% of the then total issued H Shares) and an
interest in a lending pool comprising 32,150,000 H Shares (representing approximately 2.25% of the then total
issued H Shares). According to the latest records of HKSCC Nominees Limited and other information available
to the Directors as at the Latest Practicable Date, save as disclosed above, all the other H Shares held by HKSCC
Nominees Limited were held by it on behalf of a number of other persons, none of whom individually was
interested in 5% or more of the then total issued H Shares.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at the Latest Practicable
Date, no other person had an interest or short position in the Company’s shares or
underlying shares (as the case may be) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or was otherwise a substantial shareholder (as such term is defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors, the
Company’s supervisors, CLSA and American Appraisal China Limited had any interest, direct
or indirect, in any assets which had, since 31st December, 2002, being the date to which the
latest published audited accounts of the Group were made up, been acquired or disposed of by
or leased to any member of the Group or were proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or
leased to any member of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or the
Company’s supervisors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement subsisting as
at the date of this circular which is significant to the business of the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors, proposed directors (if any) or
supervisors of the Company had any existing or proposed service contract with any member
of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of CLSA and American Appraisal China Limited had
any interest in the securities of the Company or any shareholding in any member of the Group
or had the right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to
subscribe for securities in any member of the Group.
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3. QUALIFICATIONS OF EXPERTS

The following are the qualifications of the experts who have given opinions or advice which
are contained in this circular: '

Name Qualification

CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited Licensed securities adviser and corporate finance
adviser under the SFO

American Appraisal China Limited Property valuer
4. CONSENTS

Each of CLSA and American Appraisal China Limited has given and has not withdrawn its
written consent to the issue of this circular, with the inclusion herein of its respective reports,
letters and/or certificates (as the case may be) and references to its name, in the form and
context in which it appears.

5. NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE

The Directors are not aware of any material adverse change in the financial or trading
position of the Group since 31st December, 2002, being the date to which the latest published
audited accounts of the Group were made up.

6. LITIGATION
No member of the Group is at present engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance to the Group and no litigation or claim of material importance to the Group is
known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against any member of the Group.

7. GENERAL

(a) The legal address and head office of the Company is situated at 14 Jingsan Road, Jinan,
Shangdong Province, the PRC.

(b) The Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office of the Company is Hong Kong
Registrars Limited at 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

(c) The Secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhou Lianqing, who is a senior engineer and
graduated from Shandong University of Technology.

(d) The English text of this circular shall prevail over the Chinese text for the purpose of
interpretation.
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8. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the offices of Baker &
McKenzie at 14th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong during normal
business hours from the date of this circular to and including 24th June, 2003:

(a) the Guangan Acquisition Agreement;

(b) the letter from the Independent Board Committee, the text of which is set out in this
circular;

(c) the letter from CLSA, the text of which is set out in this circular;

(d) the letter, summary of valuation and valuation certificate for the property valuation
prepared by American Appraisal China Limited as set out in this circular; and

(e) the written consents referred to under the paragraph headed “Consents” in this appendix.
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